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1  APPEARANCES: 1 MR. : We have a stipulation
2 gl?l?gg) a/[érgps‘i%‘g%ﬁst 2 we'll put on the record before we get started, '
3 ‘Glen Burnie, Maryland 21061 3 before we swear the witness.
4 410.553.6000 . 4 Through discovery and and discussions
rodgaston@mitlerandzois.com
On behalf of Plaintiff 5  between counsel, there, there are a number of
s - BSQUIRE 6  corporate Defendants in this case, but there is one
6 , ESQUIRE 7 corporate Defendant that is about to be added, and
. 8  wehave agreed that the process will be as follows:
9 Based upon the Answers to
8 10  Interrogatories and the information that T gave Mr.
9 ) 11 Gaston prior to the deposition, the Plaintiff
10 On behalf of Detendant 12 deceased in this case was a patient of Dr.
ALSO PRESENT: 13 and his practice. His practice was
11 14 . That was the entity in place
» VIDEOGRAPHER
12 15  atthe time of the care and treatment of the
ﬁ 16  patient at _ Hospital. All
15 17  billing was also done through that professional
1? 18  associatfon so, procedurally, we are going to
18 15 proceed as follows:
ig 20 M, Gaston's going to file a statement
21 21 ofclaim in the Health Claims Arbitration Office,
Page 3 Page 5
1 PROCEEDINGS 1  or Healthcare Alternative Dispute Resolution
2 * % E % o 2 Office, naming only . He'll
3 ( Deposition Exhibit Nos. 1-12, 3 file the appropriate Certificate of Merit and
4 respectively, were marked by the Reporter. ) 4 Report, and we'll then waive it out of ADR into the
5 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now on the 5  Cireuit Court for Prince George's County.
6  video record in the maiter of V. 6 At that time, there will be been a
7 M.D. Today's date is September 7 joint Motion to Consolidate that I am agreeing to
8  28th, 2012. The time is approximatciy 10:15 a.m. 8  and consenting to, to add .asa
9  This is the video recorded deposition of %  defendant in the current pending matter before the
10 i, M.D. being taken at in 110  Circuit Court for Prince George's County. We will
11  Rockville, Maryland. I'm the Camera Operator. My |11 do everything that the two of us can do, legally,
12 nameis . Court Reporter is 12 to make sure that the consolidation occurs in any
13 . We are hoth from Evans Reporting. 13 5T (phonetically) order that may be existing at
14 Will attomeys please identify themselves, the 14  that time, so there will be no alteration of dates.
15  parties that are with them, who they represent. :15 T file the appropriate amended Certificate of
16 MR. GASTON: Rodney M. Gaston. [ 16  Merit and Report on behalf of
17  represent . 17  and we will then proceed from there.
18 MR. : 1 18 Once that is accomplished and the
19  represent all of the Defendants in this matter. 1%  consolidation is accomplished, all other corporate
20 MR. 1 120 Defendants will be dismissed.
21 ihis mratier.

A FIAQTOR- AwmA PRy NEC I P R ;
MR. GASTCN: Andtheonl thing I w ould i
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1  addio that is that, in accordance with the Answers 1 butvery well. .
Z  to Interrogatories that I received yesterday, it is A THE VIDEQGRAPHER: Ready to administer
3 also stated that the medical clinic merged into the 3 the oath. 7
4 . - , LLC on or about 4 Whereupon,
5  November 29, . Although the medical clinic was 5 M.D.,
6  inexistence at the time, and it was the entity 6  awitness herein, called for oral examination
7  that T understand employed Dr. | I believe 7 inthe matter pendjng, being first duly sworn
8  that onece the matter is filed and removed to the 8  to tell the truth, the whole truth, and
% . Circuit Court, it would have to be a substitution 9  nothing but the truth, testified as follows:
10 inname only, actually, so that the current legal 10 EXAMINATION
11  entity that is in existence for the purposes as a 11 BY MR. GASTON:
12  defendant in the case would be, ac;cually, the 12 Q Sir, could you please state your name
13 ,» LLC. 13  and business address?
14 MR. . You can do whatever you| 14 A I It's
15  think you need to do, but I'm telling you don't 15 y , Maryland is where my office is.
16  screw ub your insurance. The insurance coverage in i6 Q Okay. And your home address, sir? '
17  this case is for the .. for the 17 A Tt's
18  incident that occurred in February of What 18 Maryland.
19  entity exists in November of is of no merit or 15 QIs located in
20  no moﬁoﬁ, whatsoever, for purposes of this event 20 | County? )
21 for triggering of coverage for this claim in 21 A Yes,sir.
Page 7 Page 9O “\'
1  February of You screw it up, it's your risk. 1 Q Doctor, my hame is Rodney Gaston. I'm
2 MR. GASTON: Well -- and there's not 2 anattorney. Jrepresent . The
3 going to be an, an admission, or an agreement by 3 Treason I asked you to be here at your deposition
4 the parties that the correct current legal 4 today is to obtain some answers from you with
5  entity -- 5 respect to the medical care and treatment that you
6 MR. i Itis the — 6 provided Miss during the,
7 MR. GASTON: Hang on a second, so - 7 actually, first week in February
8 MR. You're, youreright, . 8 All my questions will be, unless I
9  that that's the correct current legal entity. g state otherwise, would be a -- directed to that
10 MR. GASTON: Right. That's -- yeah. 10 course of treatment and Miss death
11 MR.. And —butthat'snot {11 that occurred on December the
12 relevant to the event of what the correct Jegal 12 I, I understand that you've had your
13 entity was at the time of the incident, which is 13 deposition taken before?
14  what's going to trigger your coverage. 14 A Yes, sir.
15 MR. GASTON: Right. But foranamed {15 Q 1 justwant to go over some of the
16  defendant, it's a little bit different. 16  ground rules, so we can get through the deposition
17 MR. : Okay. 17  efficiently.
ig MR. GASTON: And, and I'l just ask the |18 The Court Reporter is here to take down
19  doctor a couple of questions on that - 19  my guestions and your answers. The Court
20 ' : Okay. 20 Reporter's very competent, but she can't take down |
21 i 1 g

both of us talking at the same time. Tn normal

- ]

Lo Zj
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conversation it's perfectly okay, people interrupt
each other on a constant basis. And during the
course of the deposition you'll be am:icipaﬁﬁg my
questions, and you'll want to get the answers out.:
But so that we have a clean record, I'll just ask
that you wait until after I finished asking my
_question before you answer, and I'll try to give

you the same courtesy; I'm not — I'll try not to
interrupt you while you're answering my question.

Also, all of your answers have to be
verbal. The Court Reporter can't take down a shake
of the head or a nod.

Also, if at aﬁytime you do not
inderstand the question that F'm asking for any
reason, stop me immediately and let me know, and
I'll try to rephrase the question. Otherwise, if
you don't interrupt me, and stop me, and tell me 1
don't understand what -- the cﬁestions you're
asking, we'll assume that you have understood the
question, and did, and responded accordingly.

Do you have any questions before we do?

W - oy ol N
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Page 12

of Virginia?

A Yes, sir,

(Q Okay. That's not on here, I don't
think -~

MR. : 1 don't think it is
either.

Q (MR.GASTON) - that's why I'm just --
and can you tell me when you -- '

A So does this have to be absolutely
complete? -

Q We would hope so. In, in a medicai
license, in, in comparison to an article you may
have written,, a medical license is pretty important
for, for the purposes of the deposition, s0 ~-

A Well, then --

MR : Not if you don't use

Q (MR. GASTON) -- can you tell me when
you were licensed according to that? '

A About two years ago. I'm -- again, I,
1 do not know.

W oo =y ol W N
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A No.

Q Doctor, T believe your attorney sent me
a copy of your current curriculum vitae. 1
received that last night. And I'm going to ask the
Court Reporter to mark this as the next exhibit.

( Deposition Exhibit No. 13
was marked by the Reporter.)

Q (MR.GASTON) And I also forgot to add,
Doctor, if at anytime during the deposition you
want to take a break, you just let us know, and
we'll stop, too.

A Thank you.

Q I'll show you what's been marked
Exhibit No. 13. I'il ask if you could please take
a look at this document.

A Yes,sir.

Q Does that appear to be a current copy
of your curriculum vitae?

A Yes, sir,

Q Okay Thank you, Doctor. Doctor, are
praciice medicine in ihe %mte

vy
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Page 13
Q) Approximately two years ago?
A L1 do not know, sir. I'll have to
check my record to answer that question.
'Q Well, are you currently licensed?
A Yes. - '
MR. iz Tell, tell you what.
I'll provide you the answer when he was licensed.
MR, GASTON: Okay.
MR. . 8o we'll research it
and check it, and I'll send you a letter.
MR. GASTON: All right.
Q (MR. GASTON) And are you currently
Heensed in Virginia?
A Yes,sir.
Q Other than Virginia, and the other
states, and the District that's listed on your CV,
are you licensed to practice medicine in any other
state in the United States?
AT proha_b%y am, sir. [ will have o get
you a list of those places.

oz e

G Arevou hcc:nbcu i0 practice medicine

e

4 (Pages 10 to
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in the State of Michigan?

A LIam.

Q Okay. And - but you're unable to tell
me now, definitively, any other states, other than
those on the CV -- Virginia and Michigan -- whether
you're licensed to practice medicine? ’

A Tam practiced to license (sic)
medicine in 2 number of states. 1 need to get the
list of those states.

Q You just don't have it in your memory
today?

A 1, do not. We've applied pretty much
all the states. I don't know what states I've only
quali- — I've only got the license in. T don't
know what states I've not got the license in.

Q And, and --

A And the purpose of this was not to be
complete in any way. You know, if [ am doing other
things — it's, again, a curriculum vitae when you
send it somewhere, at least the way I look at it

as,lwlmt is the purpose I'm sending it. Ifa
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to do anything more. We'll provide you the
information as you need it. And if you want every.
single license, we'll give you every single

license. '

Q (MR. GASTON) And this is the next
question. Doctor, I'll s;how you what's been marked
as No. 8, and I'll ask you if you can identify that
document.

A This is -- it says in the Circuit Court
for Prince George's County, Maryland. Defendant,

- Answers to Plaintiffs
Interrogatories.

Q Okay. Do you remember seeing that
document before today?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. And I think on the: next to the
last page, or the last page -- could you go to- that
page and tell me if that's your signature?

A Yes,sir.

Q And were these Answers fo
Intérrogatories trethful when you executed those?

oo BENEEN I s IR € 1 TR SR S T O R
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hospital says, for privileges, I print it out and
send it. So if this is suppesed to be complete, I

wou!d love to know what areas you want it to be .

complete in, and T'm happy to fulfill that.
Q Well, the only reason I'm going over
this, Doctor, is because we asked you a question.

“The first question we asked you on the set of

questions that we sent you were to indicate all of
your licensures, board certifications, hospitals,
nursing group privileges, and memberships. And
yoir response was, See the attached CV, 50 the only
thing I have to go on is the CV.

And we asked you, specifically, to list
them all in the answer. When you refer us to the
CV, I was expecting that the CV would contain all
the information that T ask you. That's why I'm
going through this line of questioning: So now you
understand why I'm asking you these additional

Guestions.
A I-

W W -y U1 o W N
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A Yes, sir, _

Q Do you, after reviewing the answers, do
you want to make any changes, corrections, or
modifications to those answers?

A No, sir.

@ Thank you, Doctor. Show you what's
been marked as the Exhibit No. 1, and ask if you
ever seen this document before?

A To the best of my knowledge, I have.
T'm sure this is something we must have talked
about with my attorney.

Q Okay. And, Doc-, and, Doctor, that is
actually your Notice of Deposition to appear here
today and to provide testimony. We've also asked
you to produce documents, and, and materials, and
other items. Can you tell me -- and your lawyer
can assist you, if you need assistance -- what are
the items that you produced here today in
accordance with that deposition? _
Well, we provide you |

the information that was to E

5 {(Pages 14 to 17}
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be an attempt to resolve discovery issues between
counsel. So that's a prodict of my work, and Mr.
's work to iry to address the issues. |
think a number of the jssucé weren't addressed by
the stipulation that we arrived this morning, that,
that was put on the record at the beginning of the
deposition that will resolve, you know, for
instance, 23, four, five.
Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. But the question
particularly is --
MR. : What else do you need?
Q (MR. GASTON) - what, what are the
documents that you bfought here today for your
deposition in response to the Notice of Deposition?
) MR. i 'What = we brought
what was attached to the letter.
MR. GASTON: Okay.
Q. (MR. GASTON) One thing that was
attached to the letter -- and let me, let me show

W 0 - oo A b W B

[ e = T R S
Mo W N O

" not infend to produce. Would that be acourate?

NN R R
= O W ® -G

, Page 20 |
which included no record responses to deposition '
notices; we have advised you information concerning
the medical clinic; we provided you information
concemning the previous lawsuits. So what do you
want to tallk about?

MR. GASTON: Okay. I just want for the
record to reflect that what counsel and I are
talking about is Exhibit No. 10, which is a letter
that I received yesterday. And instead of me going
through and asking the Doctor if he intends to
provide the documents that you already say he's not
going to provide, if it's your proffer that this

letter contains the Response to the Request for the

Production of Documents, it also identifies what

documents were produced and what documents you do

MR. : That would be accurate.
MR. GASTON: Okay. .
MR. : And if there's any

disputes that are remaining after our stipulation
today, I assume as Officers of the Court, we'll

WO -y o N

L e e
S B I O )

you what's been marked as Exhibit No. 10. -
MR. GASTON: I'll show counsel —
Page 19
MR, : Mm-hmm.
_ MR. GASTON: -- to make sure we're on
- the right page.
MR. ¢ Yeah, we are.

MR. GASTON: Okay.

Q (MR. GASTON) And, as counsel
identified, Exhibit, Exhibit No. 10 and the
attachments, the only attachments to Exhibit No. 10
that I printed off of the e-mail were two pages of
a Verizon bill. Would that be accurate?

MR. o Right. But we've also
provided, in response to the document requests, we
provided the CV that you all already went over; we
identified the medical records that he reviewed to
prepare for the deposition; we provided the, the
dec sheet for the insurance; we provided a copy of
the deposition; we provided the, the expert
reports. So there's a number of documents that are
included. We advised you what we were not
producing in the letter; we advised you that there

were records that we had previously sent to von

USLY T L YO,
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work through it. If we haven't resolved everything
to your satisfaction at that point, we should have

a sufficient record, and you can file any Motion to
Compel you think is necessary.

MR. GASTON: Right. And I'l just put
on the record now that | requested and need all of
the documents that I asked for in my Request for
Production of Documents. To the extent that they
aren’t produced here today, then that issue remains
in dispute between the parties. '

© Q (MR. GASTGON) Doctor --
7 MR. Well, then, I withdraw
the stipulation at the beginning of the deposition.

MR. GASTON: Okay.

MR.. If you're going to play
that game, there's no point in trying to agree with
vou [ thought we had agreed to all the, the
issues involving the corporate defendants and the

financial records, et cetera. You want me how to
produce financial records and Board of Directors

minuies, ef cetera?

Evans Reporting Service
800-256-8410
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MR. GASTON: The, the only issue we
have with respect to the corporations is my
addition to your proffer this morning with respect
to the Because ‘you
indicated at the time, in accordance with Pr,

Answers to Inferrogatories — and T'Hl -
ask him this question as well -- that he was
employed by 7 . LA, It'snow
merged into” 1, M.D.,
LLC. Those are the documents that I would need
with respect to the legal entities. 1do not need
the documents with respect to all of the other
entities that are currently named as defendants,
but just that legal entity because we have a,
apparently, a, a difference of opinion as to -
whether or not The -

- Maryland, LI.C should be a defendant in the case,
S0 ;

MR.. : No, we don't, we don't
have a difference of opinion as to whether they
should be a defendant in the case. You can make

O W o~ ;Y s W R R

S el o T S T o
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Page 24 |:

Now, can, can you tell me whether or
not any of those corporate cntities existed on
February 1st, through February 6, :

A Would it make sense I take you through '

the process?

MR. . : No, try to --
Q (MR. GASTON) Whatever give you —
MR. ; - try to answer his

question as best you can. If you cannot answer his
question djrectlj, he'll ask another one.
A Okay.
entity, other than the Maryland - other than The
, LA, that was at that time in

for - the only other

existence, was a Michigan entity, okay: i, USA,
which was a whole different entity that did only
treatment of venous disease in Michigan.
MR, ir Okay. You've answered |
his question, Wait for the next question. |
Q (MR. GASTON) Thank you. Okay. All
right. Now, can you walk me through the

\DODA-JOWU'En-b(.UI\JJ—‘

e e
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Page 23

that decision without my assent. What I'm trying
to tell you mas a practical matter is, it doesn't
make any difference. o

MR. GASTON: I understand that, and

- maybe I can ask the Doctor 2 couple of questions .

about the merger —

MR.. : Sure.

MR. GASTON: -- that will eliminate the
need for the production of docurnents_'

MR. : Okay.

MR. GASTON: Se let's, let's do that
right now.

MR.. . All right.

MR. GASTON: Let's see if we can clear
this up.

MR, . Good.

Q (MR. GASTON) Doctor, in addition to
you, we've also brought a suit against several
other corporate entities -

O @ w3 o U o W

e i
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Page 25}
organization of £.A. and how
that was merged into ’
,M.D.,, LLC?
A P.A. was our only

enﬁty in the State of Maryland, D.C., Virginia at
the time of this event. And we offered services

for cardiac, thoracic, vascular diseases, and

venous diseases through the » PA.
We went through a structural change in November

when --
MR. : November of what year?

A November of ' , November of last year,

when the vein segment separated out and became
M.D., LLC. And since
—and merged with , M.D.,
LLC doing just the venous pari. Everyibing eise
was separated out and went with a different entity.
Q Okay. Now -- )
MR. . + Does that help?
MR. GASTON: ['think so.

Q (MR, GASTON) -- the part of The

—

7 (Pages 22 to 25j
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Page 28 |
1 i, P.A. -- and was that a Maryland 1 Q- Yeah. And that's sort of important,
2 corporation? 2 because —
3 A Yes, sir, to the best of my knowledge. 3 A -1 can give you those answers.
4 Q Okay. And - 4 Q And, yeah, because what —
5 A Yes. ’ 5 MR. it So, so let me see if 1
6 Q -- were you either the President -- 6  got -- what you specifically want to know is that
7 were you the President of that corporation? 7  the cardiovascular component in November of
8 A Yes, sir. 8  merged into what current entity?
9 Q Okay. There came a time when you 9 MR. GASTON: If's exactly the answer I
10  decided that you wanted to merge with 110 peed ' : :
11 M.D., LLC? 11 MR. 1 We will get you that
1z A Yes. 12 answer.
13 Q Is that has Maryland corporation? 13 MR. GASTON: Okay.
14 A That's a Delaware corporation. 14 Q (MR, GASTON} And would it be fair to
15 Q Delaware corporation. Does it have 15  say that at the time of the merger, that whatever
16 privileges? 16  the name of the new entity in -- took over all of
17 - A 'No. This, again, this is o the best 17  the assets, debts, and liabilities of the vascular
18  of my knowledge. 18  cardiac portion of P.A?
| R Q Okay. And is a Delaware corporation 19 MR. + And, see, that's where
20  also licensed to conduct business in the State of 20 you - you and I are having the source of our
21 Maryland? 21 difference. The asset that you are obviously
Page 27 Page 29|
1 A To the best of my knowledge. 1 interested in here is the policy of insurance that "
2 Q Okay. So if's simply 2 insured this event through whatever corporaie
3 M.D., LLC, for'the lack of a_ 3 entity was in existence in February of , not
4 better word, swallowed up ' . LPLAL 4 ‘November of . . And the entity that was insured
5  inits entirety? 5  inFebruary of was P.A.
6 A The venous component of this, the &  What legal entity that may have been 10 months
-7 . cardiac thoracic and vascular component did not 7 later isn't relevant from an insurance perspective.
8  join *= <= the , M.D. 8 And, so, if vou want -- and, and you've
% LLC. That— and, and 1 think, ultimately, we'll 9 used the key word bere, assets. Obviously, an
10  peed that answer — that joined 10  insurance pelicy is an asset, but the triggering
11 , which is a separate corporation. | 11 event here is not November of . The triggering |
12 Q Okay. That's - and because that name 12 eventto make that asset potentially available and I
13 isn'tonhere. So 3= 13 satisfy a judgment is the date of the occurrence, :
14 ! z, is it LLC, or is that the 14  which is February . That's why I think that
15  complete full name of that entity? 15  you're treading in a different area than what you
le A It's aiso Maryland, LLC. Now,I'm | 16  are looking for to trigger a coverage.
17  kind of going into areas which I'm not 100 percent | 17 I don't care what the entity was in ;
18  sure zbout, but I'm answering these guestions to 18 ", in Novembet. 1 de care what it was in |
19  the best of my ability. I, I know where struck — 19  February of , because I want my client fo have
) 20 the maximum insurance coverage available to protect |
21 im from any potential ciaim, such as the one

Evans Reporting Service
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1 you're asserting. 1 Q (MR.GASTON) And the cardiac vascular
2 MR. GASTON: I agree, but I still have 2 component of merged into
3 to be sure that I have the right legal entity a 3 . That the
4 live legal entity in court, and that's why I'm 4 ~assumed all of the
5  asking the Doctor whether -~ and I think he, he's 5  agsets and all of the liabilities?
&  already indicated that the thoracic - 6 MR. iz Do you know the answer |;
7 MR. You can, you can pursue| 7 to that? )
8  that, if you want —- 8 A 1honestly do not know the correct
9 MR. GASTON: Yeah, I just want to -- 9 legal answer to that question.
10 MR. : -~ and you can, you can 10 Q@ (MR. GASTON) Okay.
11 spend vour legal money any way you want. And if 11 A I'm really not trying to give you a
12 youwant to go down that line, you can spend as 12 hard time here. Tknow we all want to get to the
13  much time as you want. 13 truth, but1, I de not know the exact answer to
(14 What I've been trying to suggest to you 14 that question.
15 s, you and I both know this case never will, under 15 MR. : Butl -- we're going,
16  Maryland's caps, have a value in exccés of 2 16  to.to ask, and that's who I'll ask, if I have to
17 million, ever. If you want to spend your legal 17  go to his corporate lawyer. )
18  money pursuing what the asset transfer was in 18 Q (MR. GASTON) And who was the then
19  November of , Teel free. ' 19 President of 2, at
20 Q (MR. GASTON) And thaf's the question 20 the time of the merger?
21 that[ asked you. In-- November 29th of ) 21 A 1,1 own that entity —
Page 31 ‘ Page 33}
1 when the thoracic vascular cardiac component of the 1 Q Yeah. Soit's you? '
2 L . merged into 2 A -- okay? No, see, but now when we
3 is that merger — 3 start talking about legal asset changes and all, I
4 A No, L, T- 4  know we went through that with the componeht,
5 Q - reflected? 5  we did not go through all the details on the
6 A —1 think it's the 6th¢r way around. &  side because it was all done very informally, okay?
7 Q. lI'm sorry? - 7 S0, on record, I don't want to say
8 A The cardiac thoracic part was — 8  there was an assef transfer, there was an
9 Q Yes, Fdid. L I'misspoke. Thank you, 9  agreement, there was this, that. We will get you
10 very much. 10 that answer —
11 A Sure. 11 Q Yeah.
12 Q [Idid, ] misspoke. 12 A -- to the hest of our ability.
13 MR. 13 Q Andwas it a, an arm's length
14 . 14  transaction?
15 MR. GASTON: 15 A ¥t was done through our attorneys.
16 - 16 Whatever aeeds to be done, they took care of if.
17 MR.. * Right. 17 Q Okay. So even though you don't have
18 MR. GASTON: - which is! M.D,, 18 the answer today to the question, you're telling me
19  LLC, which you're not going to supplement and 19 that you would be able to get me that answer -
20 provide me with the exact correct name of that 20 A Absolutely.
21 i 21 G --through your aitorney at a later
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_ Page 34
1 date? 1 for her care from February 1st,
2 A Absolutely. 2 through February 6, ?
3 Q Thank vou, Doctor. That -- and all of 3 A Yes,sir.
4 the documents that I requested with respect — as 4 Q And would that include your operative
5 Tlongas I gef the answer fo that question, I don't 5  note?
&  believe I'll need any additional documents. But I 6 A Yes, sir. ‘
7  have to wait and see what your lawyer produces. 7 Q@ Okay. AndI believe you also prepared
8 MR.. + So what you're looking | 8  a death report as well? )
9  foris whether there was a formal asset transfer? 3 A Yes, sir.
10 MR. GASTON: Right. 10 Q Okay. I'Hl show you those documents,
11 MR.. : Okay. 11  ifyouwould. It's Exhibit No. 3. Would that be
12 MR. GASTON: Formal, or informal, or 12 the death report that you prepared for
13 any other way you want, want to describe it. 13 17
14 " Q (MR.GASTON) And, and 1, I think, 14 A Yes, sir.
15  Doctor, you're unable to provide anymore 15 Q Aand, What, Exhibit No. 4 contained your
16  information today regarding the legality of that 16  operative note of the inftial surgery, and the
17 transfer; would that be a fair siatement? 17  operative note of the attempted repair of the last
18 A That, that is a fair statement. 18  radiograph? i
19 Q We'll move on from that. Okay. 119 A Yes, sir. :
20 Doctor, you're currently board certified in the 20 Q Okay. And I understand that you filled
21 State of Maryland in cardiovascular and thoracic 21 outthe death certificate for N i?
Page 35 Page 37
1 surgery; is that correct? 1 A Yes,sir.
2 A Yes, sir. 2 Q Okay. AndI'll show you what's been
3 Q Okay. And how many vears have youbeen | 3  marked as Exhibit No. 2 and ask if that's a death
4 -practicing medicine as a cardiothoracic surgeon? 4 certificate you filled out, and is that your
5 A Since '98. o 5 signature on the death certificate?
6 Q 1998. And how many hospitals have you 6. A Yes, sir.
7 performed those surgeries at -- in the State of 7 Q Okay. The cause of death on the death
8  Maryland since 19987 8 certificate is right heart failure, cardiac
¢ A In the State of Maryland, two. 9  tamponade, bleeding from graft injury. That's A,
10 Q Two? 10 B,andC in Box No. 23-A. In simpler terms, can, |
11 A Yes. 11  can we agree that Miss died as a result |
12 Q And which hospitals would those be? 12 of the lacerated heart graft, which lead to
13 A Hospital, and 13  internal bleeding, which then lead to heart
14 " Hospital. Actually, I've also gone ;14 failure?
15 to Hospital. And that's —since weareon |15 A She died of a lacerated graft that lead
16  the record, again, I ¢id go once in a while to 16  to bleeding and ischemia of the right heart, and
17 : Hospital, also. 17  altogether. So, right heart injury, ischemia,
13 Q Okay. 18  tamponade, all those things together led to her
19 A Aliright. 12 demise.
20 Q Now, have you had a chance to review 20 Q All all caused by the lacerated graft?
21 the medicai chart from ihe hospitai for 21 A All caused or accenivated by the
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_ Page 38 Page 40}
1 lacerated graft. ) o 1 questions, and we'll see where we go from there. '
2 Q And ischemia of the right heart, is 2 Q (MR.GASTON) Show you what's been
3 that a medical term for tissue death? 3 marked as Exhibit No. 6. T want to ask you if you
4 A For death of the heart muscle. 4 cdn explain what that is. It's part of the medical
5  Actually, that is not right. Infarction is death | 5  chart for Miss!
&  of the heart muscle. Ischemia is lack of blood | © A Sure. This is 2 venous mapping done
7 supply for the heart muscle. 7 for evaluation of the veins. : _
8 Q And the lack of blood supply to the 8 Q Thank you And, Exhibit No. 7, if you
9 heart muscle resulted in what? 9  could take a look at this and explain what that is.
10 A Indeath of the heért, the heart 10 A This is a note from the intensivist,
11 muscle. : 11 from the attending M.D. anesthesiologist, which
12 | (@ 'Cause all organs need blood to 12 states that the patient was intubated, chest
13 survive? - 13 opened, intra — and transferred to the OR at 8:52
14 A Yes. 14 a.m. ’
15 Q Isthat frue? 15 Q Okay. Doctor, on Page — if we can
16 A Is that a trick question? 16 stay with that exhibit for just a moment, please. u
17 Q No, no. It's —-all organs in the body 17 I youcan go to Page Two. And have you seen these
18  need heart — need blood to survive, true? 18  types of forms before from this hospital?
19 A All go through cervical spinal fluid 19 MR.. . The only question is,
20  and bathe in some type of oxygen, so - 20  have you seen these kinds of forms?
21 Q Okay. Allright. And it was a lack 21 A T have usually not, sir. 7
' Page 39 Page 41|
1 of-- 1 Q Okay. Have you ever filled out one of
2 MR.. : Unfoﬂunately? you 2 these forms for any of your patients at
3  asked him potentialiy technical questions. 3 Hospital?
4 * MR. GASTON: Yeah. ' 1 A Not that I can remember.
5 - Q (MR. GASTON) Throughout the course of | 5 Q Okay. Have you had a chance to look at
6  the deposition, Doctor, I'm going to be asking you -6 this report before this very minute?
7  if you can explain the procedures, the diagnosis, 7 A T have not gone in any detail of this
8  the treatment, the surgery that you performed on 8  report before this minute. )
9 in plain and easy to g Q Okay. 1 understand that this is
10 understand language so that I can understand it, 10  called, for lack a better word, a Code Sheet?
11  and also so the members of the jury can understand 11 A Yes. .
1z it 12 Q Where a -- where a person suffers
13 A VYes. 13 cardiac arrest and stops breathing. Would that be
14 Q If we can try to do that, it might make 14 an accurate siatement?
15  things a little bit easier. If there comes a point 15 A That's what it seemes like.
16  in the deposition where you simply have to use the | 16  Okay. And, Doctor, on Page Two of the
17 complex medical terminology, then I understand that 117 exhibit, it looks like at 7:58 a.m. -~ now, this i3
18  aswell,so— 18  for Miss -- on six -- on February 6,
19 A Sure, 19 , at ‘7:58 a.m., her blood pressure was zero;
20 MR. : You, youjustneedto 20  would that be fair?
Z as 18, and vou'll answer the 21
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Page 42 Page 44 |
1  or does that mean zero? I — it says BP, and 1 we go further, it goes into b-fib 'till 8:30, and
2 there's a cross through it. ‘2 then at 8:33, it is sr, which is the term usually
3 Q What would you interpret that notation 3 used for sinus rhythm.
4 to be in a medical chart? 4 Q So would it be fair to say that, from
5 MR, . It's — since he's only 5 758 am.to 8:32 am., Miss 's heart was
&  rarely seen these reports, I think you need to ask &  not beating according to this chart?
7 the person who actually drafted it, would have been 7 A Without knowing what pa means, that
8  the zero or not recorded. 8  seems like a reasonable assumption.
9 A I would honestly not be able to answer 9 ~ Q Okay. Doctor, if a patient's heart is
10 it sir. Usually, when it's zero, they would say . 10 not beating,_(héw long does it take for the brain to
11  zero. A, a netation with this, with a cross, means |11  suffer injury and partial brain death?
12  Idon't--it was not taken, bot I, I do not want 12 MR. : Assuming there's no
13 to interpret what somebody else wrote here. 13  resuscitation going on. 7 .
14 Q (MR.GASTON) If the patient had a 14 Q (MR. GASTON) Well -
15  blood pressure, would you expect that those numbers | 15 A That's the key thing. As long as
1&  appear in that box? 16  there's no circulation to the brain going om from
17 A If somébody took it at that time. 17  some other source --
18 Q Okay. Now, was Miss 'sheart |18 Q Right.
|19 beating on its own on -- 7:58 am. on February 6, 18 A — C-1 being resuscitative measnres, it
20 1? , 20 takes about three minutes.
217 A Under the rhythm column, it says a. 21 Q About three minutes. And for _:_
Page 43 Page 45
1  Now, a could mean asystole. 1 resuscitative measures to work, it would have -- :
2 MR. : Go down the bottom. 2 the blood would have to be throwing — flowing
3 A Oh, yeah. So a is asystole, so the 3 through the arteries up into the brain in order to
4 answer is no. 4 supply the brain with oxygen, correct?
5 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. And whatdoesP.A.| 5 A Yes,sir. ,
6 mean? 6 Q Okay. And when you do -- have you done
7 MR. . P.A.isnot 7 CPR on a patient before?
8  translated -- 8 A Yes,sir.
9 MR. GASTON: Yeah. 9 Q Okay. There would be -- if the bleod
10 MR.. : —at'the bottom ofthe |10  pressure cuff was hooked up to the patient, or
11 form. 11 other blood pressure momnitoring was hooked up to
12 " MR. GASTON: I'm asking if he knows 12 the patient, would you be able to see the blood
13  what those initials might mear. 13 pressure; would it register on the machine while
14 A 1donot, sir. 14  you're doing the chesi compressions?
15 Q (MR. GASTON) Can you tell from this 15 A If you have invasive a line in place,
16  chart when Miss {'s heart began {o beat? 1€  an airfine in place, you wouid be able to know
17 A So, based on this chart, it is a from 17  that. If you de not, it is difficalt to know that.
18  T:58 to 8:07; itis lia from 8:08 to.8:14. {do not Q Difficult to know that. Also, if, in
19  kmow what pz means, so I cannot answer your the patient such as Miss ,whohasa

significant lacerated graft in her heart, would
that also impede the flow of blood through her

N
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1 arteries to a vein? 1 Now, I know I'm not supposed to go off,
2 A In the heart? 2 'but one thing. Based on the people who were there
3 Q Throughout the body. If there’sa -- 3 at that time, I can guarantee you she got very good
4 you have a lacerated, lacerated vein in her heart, 4 care, the best possible. Obviously, we all hope
5 which I understand she had in this case, you're 5  this would have never happened but, based on the
6  doing the chest compressions, is the blood still 6  doctors who were there, they are very good doctors,
7 going through, still going to the vein, oris it ki Q Okay. And we'll go into the --
8  being pumped out into the chest cavity as aresult 8 A Sure
9  ofthe chest compressions? . 9 Q --to that care in just a little bit.
10 A It depends on the effectiveness of the 10 I show you what's been marked as
11  chest compressions. 11 Exhibit No. 5. These are some pages I pulled cut
12 Q Would there by any way to know that 12 ofthe chart. ‘And I'll ask you if you can
13  from this record? 13 recognize if your handwriting is on any of those
14 A Again, to the best of my ability in 14 pages first.
15 reading this record, there -- Jet's see. 15 A Yes.
16 Spontanerous assistance. Spontaneous compression., 16 Q And then if you can recognize who
17  Based on just what I've been provided hcr'e,i don't | 17  wrote - whose handwriting is on those pages.
18  have any reason to be able to say yes or no. 18 MR.., ¢ So, to the first
12 Q Doyou believer that, from the period of 19  question --
20 time of 7:58 through 8:32 on February 6, that 20 A My handwriting is not on any of these
21  Miss suffered some sort of injury to her 21  papers.
Page 47 Page 49
1 brain from 2 lack of blood and oxygen going through 1 Q@ (MR. GASTON}) Okay. »
2 her brain during that period of time? ’ 2 MR. : Now, let's see if you
3 A T would not be able to say that, sir. - 3 canrecognize anything in writing.
4 Q Did you ever provide any advice to the 4 A You know, I -
5 family as to whether or not she suffered 5 MR. Ifyou -
6  brain damage after this entire event was over? 6 A —will be guessing.
7 MR. . So you're separating 7 MR. . Well, and sometimes
8 -outnow justthe — 8  guesses are okay because they are trying to figure
g MR. GASTON: Yeah. S  outwho it was. If you have areasonable sense as
10 MR. . : - 15-minute period to | 10 1o who you believe this handwriting was,
11  the entire morning? & 11  understanding that you're not binding that person,
12 MR. GASTON: Right. 12 that it's actually theirs, but to give him some
13 MR. . i Okay. Go ahead. 13 idea’cause he's going to want to try to find out
14 G (MR. GASTON) Yeah. 14  whois, you can't do that.
15 A 1 do not absolutely recollect my 15 A My assumption would be this is Dr.
16  discussion with them, but usually in a situation 16 » , ang this is
17  like this we do tell the patient that the patient 17 . )
18  — tell the family that the patient had # périod of 18 Q (MR.GASTON) Okay. And did you — ‘
19  cardiac arrest. We are not sure during that time | 19 MR. . + And we're refering to |
20  she suffered any kind of brain damage. That's the 20 the signature at the bottom of Pagé One of' ‘
21 suai for us. 1 Exhibit - excuse me -- Five, is it?
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1 THE WITNESS: Yes. 1  toright atrinm. Then he's named the medications ._
2 MR. = What's the exhibit 2 Atropine, Vasopressin, sinus rirythm with palpable |-
3 number here? 3 pulse, respiratory OR for washout; hydrotropes
4 * THE WITNESS: Five. 4 would require something, _
5 MR. : Five, Yeah, and 5 Q (MR. GASTON) Thank you, very much. ;
6  then-- ) ’ 6  Doctor, do youremember when Miss first
7 THE WITNESS: Dr.’ is 7 became your patient, the approximate time? 5
8  intensivist at the hospital, and lisa 8 A She'd come to the office. That's when
9  nurse practitioner at the hospital, 9  she first became my patient.

10 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. 10 Q Okay. And was she referred by another

11 A These, I would not be able to identify 11 doctor? ' :

120 it ’ 12 A Yes, sir.

13 MR. < And you're referring to | 13 Q And what docior was that?

14  Page Three? ) 14 A That was Dr.

15 THE WITNESS: Page Three. 15 Q And do you know Dr.

1é MR.. ¢ Okay. 16 A Yes, sir.

17 Q (MR. GASTON) Back to Dr.’ 17 Q Does Dr. -- has he referred

18  note. Doctor, can you decipher what he wrotc on 18  patients to you in the past?

19  that page for me? : 19 A Yes, sir.

20 A Oh, that's, that's, to the best of my 20 Q Okay. Now, did you conduct an

21 ability? 21  examination of Miss

Page 51 Page 53|

1 Q Yes, sir. Its alt I'm asking. 1 A Tmet with Miss
2 A Responded to codé. Patient developed 2 Q Okay. And what was the purpose Dr.
3 cardiac something following -- 3 sending Miss to you for further
4 MR. : Go ahead. 4 medical treatment?
5 A -- brief episode of the removal pacing 5 A Miss had ischemic heart
&  wires. The rhythm asystole, and then there's 6  disease, and also had a mild to moderate myocardial |2
7 something else here. Something else, somethilig 7 devastation. That is why he had sought my
8 else, something else. Dr, » at bedside. 8  attention with respect to Miss
9 I'm sorry; sir, I would not be able g Q Okay. Did she have any carterization

10 to-- 10  ({sic) procedures before you initially saw her?

11 Q (MR.GASTON) Okay. Isthat all you 11 MS.. : Catheterization?

12 can decipher from, from that report, from whatyou 12 Q (MR. GASTON) Catheterization.

13 justtestified to, Doctor? 13 A Yes, sir, she did.

14 A You know, I can pick up words in 14 Q Ckay. And do you kncw what the results

15  between which, basically, Pr. isatthe i 15  of, of the catheterization was?

16  bedside. Intubated word is there. Large ciot i 16 A She had severe triple vascular heart

17  front of the right'atfium. I mean, he'snot—1 17  coronary artery disease.

18  canm'tread -- in front of, then I see the word 18 MR, : Keep your voice up a

19 right atrjum. 19  Hitle bit.

20 + Adjacent to. 20 Q (MR. GASTON) Severe triple vessel -

2 A Blockagesin b v arieri

eail, adjacent
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1 Q Okay. . ' 1 with me. Would you be able, based upon your
2 MR. GASTON: May I ask Madam Court 2 experienée as a cardiac surgeon and based upon that
3 Reporter mark this as the next exhibit? 3 cardiac report, be able to tefl me, by using a
4 { Deposition Exhibit No. 14 4 heart model, where all of these vessels are? k
5  was marked by the Reporter.) 5 A Absolutely. [
6 (Off-record discussion.) 3 Q Thank you, Doctor.
7 Q (MR. GASTON) Doctor, I show you what's | 7 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Watch your
8  been marked as Exhibit No. 14. This the medical 8  microphone.
9  records that your attorney has provided to vs. And 9 (Off-record discussion.)
10 what I pulled out, I believe, is the Cardiac 10 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. And 1 presume
11  Catheterization Report for the cardiac 11 vou've seen a, a model of the heart like this
12 catheterization that was done on 12 before in your practice?
13 on January 14th, . And I ask if, if that is 13 A Not exactly this one, sir, but —
14  what that report reflects? 14 Q So what -
15 A Yes,sir. 15 A --Thave seen a model of the heart.
le Q Okay. And, Doc, could you explain to 16 Q Allright. You think that the model
17 me from the report, and are you able to identify 17 that I brought with me today fajrly and accurately
18  the arteries that were partiatly or 100 percent 18  depicts the structure of the human heart and the
19  blocked from that report? 19  vessels, although it's about two to three times
20 A Yes. 20 larger than the normal human heart?
21 Q Is it possible to name those for me? 21 A Yes, sir, it does,
Page 55 Page 57
1 A Yes, sir. 1 Q Okay. And ifyou could possibly point
2 Q Allright. And ifyou could do so. 2 . the heart to the camera, we'll let the cameraman -
3 A The left anterior descending had 50 3 A 1t okay to stand up,and --
4 percent blockage in the proximal part; it had 60 4 Q Sure, Doctor, whatever you like to do.
5  percent blockage in the mid-part, 60 to 70 percent, 5 As comfortablé as you can.
6  and had diffuse disease in the rest of it, in the 6 A Okay.
7 distal segment. The first diagonal, which is - 7 Q And 1 think the first you said, the
8 had 80 to 90 percent blockage, had — and then an 8  left anterior descending.
9  additional 80 percent blockage, and the second 9 A This is the left anterior descending
10  diagonal had an ostial 90 percent blockage. The 10 (Indicating).
11  circomflex, mid-circumflex was o¢cluded a hundred i 11 Q Okay. It was 50 percent proximal, 60
12 percent, and the first of two was marginal, was 80 |12  percent mid - is it middle?
13 percent blocked. The right coronary artery had 13 A Fifty percent proximal --
14 severe diffuse disease. The middie part of it 14 G Okay.
15  showed a 95 percent blockage, and the distal part |15 A — mid is 60 percent, and -- 60 to 70
16  of it showed a hundred percent blockage. Ii'salso ;16  percent -- and then there is diffuse dis-, disease
17  noted that the patient had two plus mitral 17  inthe a’péx. :
| 18 regurgiiation and had ejection fraction 6f40 te 45 18 Q Okay. And we're talking about
19  percemt. 19 proximal. Is that closer to the top of the heart? - 5
20 Q In order to understand where these 20 A Yes,sir. -
21  atieries ate on the heart, I bronght a heari modei 27 Q Okay. Thank you, Doctor. And whatis
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Page 58 Page 60
1 the next artery? 1 that you did not do any repair to the mitral valve.
27 A The next one are the diagonals, which 2 MR. ¢ Right. |
3 are the branches that come off of the anterior 3 A Yes. g
4 descending. So these are the diagonals 4 Q (MR. GASTON) We're going to leave that
5 (Indicating). And then we're talking about the 5  partof it out. T just want to talk about the
6  obtuse marg; -- the circumflex, which is, which 6  coronary bypass work that you did.
7 wraps around the heart, and these are obtuse 7 A Okay.
8  marginals, these (Indicating). 8 Q So if you could explain the course of
9 Q Can you turm it to me a little bit this 9  treatment that you recommended for Miss
10 way? _ 10 with respect to the coronary arteries.
11 . . A (Witness complied.) i1 A Okay. So once we get a referral from a
12 " Q Great. Thank you, Doctor. 12 cardiologist, it's -- the discussion happens, is
13 A These branches are the obtuse 13 this patient the right patient for conservative
14  marginals. 14 management, or for surgical management. And here -
15 A And here we have the mid-circumflex was| 15 the decision was that we will take over for :
16  ahundred percent blocked, and then the obtuse |16  surgical management and treat her with coronary
17 ni_arginalé, the first one, was 80 percent blocked. |17  artery bypass surgery.
18 VAnd, then, the right coronary artery is the one 18 () Okay. And, based upon your experience
19  that goes. over — 19  as a cardiac surgeon, what is the operation that
20 Q Can you turn it? . 20  youintended to perform on Miss
21 A - on this side -- 21 A Ti's kind of hard to take the mitral
Page 59 page 61}
1 Q Mm-hmm. 1 valve position out of this, because even thongh we “
z A — that's the coronary artery, and then 2 didn't do anything, that was impertant in the whole
3 suppfies blood to this area of the heart. And the 3 decision-making process. So is it okay if I -
4 right coronary artery was 95 percent blocked, and 4 Q Sure.
5 then the distal part was a hundred percent blocked. | 5 A - conclude it, conclude it.
6 Q Okéy. Thaink you. 6 Q You, you, you can. I justtried to
7 A And then — 7 streamline it. But go ahead.
8 Q Okay. Now, based upon -- and if you 8 A Okay.
9 want to keep the model there, right there, based 9 Q If you're comfortable with that Doctor,
10 upon your review of the catheterization report and 10  go right ahead.
11  any other evaluation you made of Miss 11 A So can you repeat the guestion one more
12 what was your course of treatment that you 12 time, please?
13  recommended for her? 13 Q@ Yeah. What is the operation that you
14 A The course of treatment recommended to 14  intended to perform on Miss
15  her— 15 A So the, the purpose of the operation
16 MR. : For, forthe a 16  wa=s to increase bloed supply to her heart in 2 way
17  second -- because of the way he didn't include the 17  that we can then evaluate whether the valve still
18  regurgitation, so just address for the moment the 18  needs to be done or not once her heart is getting
19  coronaly artery disease component of this, ' 19  beétter blood sapply.
20 Q (MR. GASTON) Right. And, for the 20 Q Okay. And before going into the
21 21 operation, did you have an idea of which of the

purpose of the deposition, it's my understanding
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Page 62

Page 64 |

A Yes.

.1 arteries you were going to perform bypass surgery 1
2 on? ' 2 Q - already identified, you believe that
3 A You know, the decision-making in 3 the veins in her leg were suitable for your
4 patients like Miss is this: That we 4  purposes?
5 have to given increased blood flow to the inferior 5 A Were, yes.
& and lateral walls, because that's where the mitral 6 Q Okay. Now, was there a decision made
7 wvalve is hooked to, and both the inferior and the 7 as to whether to.take the vein out of the left leg -
8  lateral wall had a handred percent acclusion of the i 8  or the right leg?
S blood vessels. Se it's rare that we can decide 9 A You know, she had had a stripping
-10  this, this, this, where I'm going to go for the 10  procedure done in the past, but the decision was
11  bypasses, because patients like her have very 11  made to make — fo take the vein.
12 diffuse disease. We say, okay, as long as I can j12 MR.. ¢ Jury's not, the jury's
13 bring increased blood flow to these two areas, 13 not going to know what a stripping procedure is, so
14  that's my primary target. And then we go in, and | 14 why don't you explain what a stripping --
15  weseein her. 15 A She had surgery for venous disease on
16 In some cases, the first obtuse “116  herrightleg. And, based on the ultrasound, we
17  marginal may be an-easy target; in some casesthe |17  identified the vein that would be appfopriate. :
18  final - the third marginal may be the final 18 Q (MR. GASTON) And did you use a vein on
19 target. So we don't really sketch it outin a 19 her left leg?
20  patient like her, that I'm going to go here, here, 20 A Yes, sir.
21 here, here, here, because of the nature of the 21 Q Okay. And --
Page 63 Page 65|
-1 distal vessels that we find. Is that a reasonable 1 MR. You want to make sure
2 answer? 2 you got your lefts and rights straight. You can &
3 ©Q It's my understanding you knew you were 3 always iook at the records 0 make sure.
4 going to have to perform some bypass surgery on 4 A TIsee—
5  her, but the exact location of the bypass was going ) Q (MR. GASTON) On your operative note,
6 tohave to wait until you actually opened up her 6 it should be this, Doctor. Xhave it in'my hand,
7 chest, and looked at the heart yourself? 7 actually. There you go, Doctor.
g A Yes,sir. 8 A Yeah. According to the operative note,
9 Q Okay. So -- now, before this, you have 9 aleft pie (phonetically) incision was made, and
10 to make a determination as to which vein in her 10  vein was harvested from the Jeft side.
il  body you're going fo use for the grafling process? 11 Q Okay. Now, is that done there -- is
12 A Yes. 12 that done immediately before the heart graft
113 Q Okay. How did you do that? 13 surgery, or is that done hours or days before?
14 A You know, that's where, in her case; we 14 A The harvesting of the vein?
15  mneeded extra help with an witrasound to see whatis | 15 Q Yes, sir.
16  ihe nature of her veins; are veins usable in hier. 16 A TIt's done simultaneously.
17  And, consequently, we did the study that you had | 17 Q Okay. '
18  talked about earlier, and we found that the veins 13 A So we have a team working down on the
15  were-- they were not ideal, but quite reasonable. 13 leg that takes the vein out —
20 Q Okay. Sobased upon the Doppler study 20 Q Okay.

-- under the ph

Evans Reporting Service
800-256-8410




- 9/28/2012

Page 66 Page &8 |;

1 Q Okay. Now, from your operative note, 1 Q Okay. And when you mean assistant, do “

2 can you tell me which is -- which members of your 2 youmean physician's assistant?

3. team were working to harvest the vein out of the 3 A These are surgical assistants, sir.

4 Miss’ ’s left leg? ' 4 Q Surgical assistants. Ts there a

5 A You know, accerding to.my operative 5  difference between a surgical assistant and a

6  note, the assistant is (phonetically) -- &  physician's assistant?

7  and we could have had a second assistant or a third | 7 A Yes, sir.

8  assistant who was not noted here - and it’s the 8 Q@ What's the difference, Doctor?

9  assistant who take the vein. 9 A A physician assistanfis a different :
10 Q Do you know in this case whether or not 10  certification than a surgical assistant. ‘Physician
11 it was Mr. or some unknown person, 11 assistants could help you with practicing in an -
12 unidentified person, who removed the vein from Miss | 12 office setting; they could, in fact, even see
13 ' s leg? ' 13  patient, on their own, while a surgical assistant
14 A Iwould not be able to say based on the 14  is specialized to help you in the operating room
15  note 1 have, sir. 15  with sargery.

16 Q In -- and this is an operative Teport 16 Q Okay. And, so, is it fair to say that
17  that you dictated following the procedure? 17  during the operative procedure, the surgical
18 A Yes, sir. 18  assistants who were assisting you, you would be
19 Q Okay. Is there a reason why you — if 1%  able to direct them to perform whatever procedure
20  you believe that there was another person assisting 20 you felt was reasonable and necessary on the
21 in the operation, that you didn't name that person 21 patient, and they would have the ability to do
Page 67 Page 69|

1  inyour operative note? 1 that?

2 A There is no reason for that, sir. 2 MR. ; : Well, there's a statute

3 Q Do - in your habit, if you will — 3 ahout this, 50 -

4 A T1should be able to get that answer, 4 MR. GASTON: Well -~

5  though, for you. 5 MR. ¢ — 1,1 don't think 4

6 MR. # I'was going to say,you ; 6 ybur, your overreaching description is appropriate. 1

7 just handed one portion of the chart. If you want 7 Ifyou're -~ '

8  him to look at the other portion of the chart, we 8 MR. GASTON: Okay.

9  could do that. 9 MR. . ~= talking about
10 Q (MR. GASTON) Let me see. 10  coronary artery bypass surgery, and, and grafting
11 A You should also hand -- 11  in obtaining veins, that's a very specialized area.

12 MR. + Yeah, hold on, holdon. ; 1.2 MR. GASTON: Okay. 7
13 Yesh. 13 MR. : ;" So, if you're asking it
14 (Pause.) 14  inthat context, I ihink it's appropriate. "
15 MR. : Just make sure T give 15 Q (MR. GASTON) In the context of this
16  you the right date. Is that the first or the .16 operation on Miss i, what could the i
17  fifth? : 17 surgical assistants -- ¢ither Mr. or Mr. ‘_
18 THE WITNESS: It's the first. Yeah, 18 -- have done to assist you; what were they
18 it's Mr. : {phonetically) -- he was the other 19  pernmitted to do?
20  assistant -- so it would be either r, and 20 A Any surgical assistant who we work

271 Miss - or Mr, 21 wiin --

o
o
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Page 70
1 MR. : Just try to define and 3
2 limitit-- ' . 2
3 A —is- 3
4 MR. : : = to this case, 4
5  because we're — we don't want to know all the 5
6  general practice issues -- 6
7 THE WITNESS: Yes. 7
8 MR. ; —ofhowthey cando | 8
9 itin other cases. This case. . _ 9
10 A They do surgical — they, they do parts 10
11 of a surgical procedure under the direct 11

12 supervision of the physician, at the direction of | 12

13 the physician, to help accomplish the goals in the | 13

Page 72§

‘ Q Weil, you_menﬁon one thing that you do
is tie the suture dowm.

A Okay. So let me start from the -- .
again, I don't know. They can do pretty much every
pért of the incision where I need more than two ;
hands to accomplish something.

Q Okay.

MR. « But it's being done
under your direct supervision?
' THE WITNESS: Absolutely.

MR. £ - Okay.

Q (MR.GASTON) So whenever you need them |
to help you with something during the surgical

process, you ask for their help, and they can
provide the assistance?

A Absolutely.

Q Now, is there anything that they —
other than taking the vein out, which I think you
said they did not on their own, but they did '
themselves while your there —-

A Yes.

21

)
—
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14 most efficient manner. _ 14
15 Q (MR.GASTON) Okay. AndI'mlooking |15
16  at--to those parts of the surgical procedures for le .
17  this patient during this operation that they can do 17
18  under your direct supervision. 18
19 A They can take the véin out for us under 19
20 - direct supervision. 20
21 Q TIs there anything else they can do? 21
Page 71
1 A They - 1
2 MR. : Is there anything else 2
3 they did do in this case? 3
4 Q (MR. GASTON) Well, is it - is there 4
5  anything else they, they could have done, 5
&  generally, for this type of operation for Miss 6
7 - Miss ? 7
8 A See, this operation involves a step 8
9  of —I'meéan, just like in work yon do, there's 9
10 multiple steps, so — and all those steps need more | 10
11 than two pair of hands, so I, I really don't get 11
12 the exact meaning of your question. This is, it's 12
13 like a team orchestra. And does he help we tie the | 13
14  knot down on the aorta? Absoluteiy. 14
15 (Q That's what I'm asking for. Can, can 15
16  yougo-- 16
17 A But, see, it's always been a vague 17
18  legal issue what kind of surgery, that's why I'm 18
1%  tryingto be careful. I mean, they are our 13
20  partners in the surgery, but my absolute 20

Page 73

Q - is there any other part of the
procedure that you can recall from your notes, from
your operative notes or from your own meniory, that
they did, quote, on their own, understanding that
with your supervision, but something that they did
on their own?

A But, see, even taking the vein out is

not on their own. So I'm opening the chest, I'm
doing stoff up here. Here we —- okay -- can I make
an incision here? Sure, make an incision here.
Hey, Doc, what do you think about the vein; is this
good enough here; can we take it; do I need to go
in the other leg; what do you think about this
branch, is it €oo big fo snip? So it's, it's a :
constant communication, se I don't want to give you
a feeling that they are on their own doing it. '
Q 1didn't mean fo suggest that they
were. What I meant, on their own, F mean, they're
the ones with, with the scalpel and the retractor,

and taking out the vein, becanse you identified

ihai as something thai the surgical assistants do

19 (Pages 70 to 73)
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Page 74 Page 76|
1 separate and apart from your tasks with the chest. 1 A —but—
2 Isthere any other activities or tasks that the 2 Q Thank you. Can you tell from your — If‘
3 surgical assistants do with their own two hands 3 Iet me ask you a question. Do you have an
4 that you don't have to be right there and assisting 2 independent recollection, as we're sitting here :
5 them to perform the function? ) 5 now, back to February Ist when you operated on Miss E
6 A Again, I don't think they do anything 6 that surgical procedure, do you have an :'
7 without us right there. In fact, if I have to go 7 independent recollection of that? '
8  for a bathroom break, the surgery stops at that 8 A T honestly do not.
9 time. 9 Q Okay. So your testimony today in a
10 Q That was going to be my next question. 10 court would have to be based upon the medical
11 A Okay. So that's - 11  charts and your own operative note; wbuld that be
12 Q If they -- you must be in the operating 12 correct? '
13 room anyﬁme a surgical assistant is going to put 13 A Absolutely.
14  their hands on the patient? 14 MR. : And his normal
15 A Now,I doﬁ't know for skin closure. 15  routines.
16 That may be the only exception that, you know, if 1| 16 MR. GASTON: Well, we'll gét to normal
17  have to leave and the skin is being closed, that 17  routines in a second, but -
18  that may be the éxception. But, otherwise, yes, we 18l MR. ; Well, you didn't
12 have to be in the room anytime a surgical assistant | 19 include it.
20  is doing anythihg to our patient. 20 MR. GASTON: Well, we'll, we'll get to
21 Q Okay. And if you have to leave the 21 thatin a minute.
Page 75 Page 77
1 room for whatever reason, then the operative i Q (MR. GASTON) You just don't have any
-2 procedure has to stop? : 2 independent recollection of this pro- --
3 A Has to stop. 3 A No.
4 Q Okay. And your surgical assistants - 4 Q --cedure? So there would be no way to
5 A So there's two ways I can leave the 5 know whether or not you had left the room
6  room. Either my partner needs to come in, or &  temporarily for an emergency or a call of nature in
7  this -- the surgery has to stop. 7 this case? '
8 Q Okay. ) 8 MR, . My understanding is --
9 A Partner, meaning another surgeon. "9 MR. GASTON: Wait a minute. Let me ask
10 Q Okay. And have there cver been times 10  the question, then you can object.
11  during the 4,000 surgeries you performed thata 11 MER. ; . Well, no, no, no.
12 surgery had to stop for whatever reason? 12 You're asking, would he have understanding. Now,
13 A You kunow, I'm usually net of that age 13 in order to answer that, he has to look at the
14  that] have to go too many times to the bathroom | 14  operative record to see if there is any reflection
15  yet, but have there been times? Absclutely, there | 15  ofa departure from the room, because breaks and
16  have been times somebody calls you from the eath |16  substitutions are normally documented, reliefs are
17  lab, bey, there's a patient who's in distress; can 17  documented. And nene of that is documented, except
18  you come help us out? There's no other surgeonin | 18 for the eirculating nurse.
19  the hospital at that time; and you feel you'rein a 1 9 Q (MR. GASTON) Well, Doctor, I don't
20  safe position — - 20 know if all thosé things aré supposed to be
23 tiestity to that. |
i

o o
G Can--

i

documented, and your lawyer can't iestify to that.
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Page 80 [:

Q Okay. Now, when the vein graft was
harvested from Miss ! left leg, is there
more than one way to harvest the vein graft?

A Yeah.

.Q Can you tell me, is there an open
procedure where you make incision along the
persdn's leg, spread the skin to have full access
to the graft; is that one way it can be dene?

A That's one way it's done.

Q Is another way by a less invasive
laparoscopic procedure?

A Yes, sir.

" Do you know in this case what procedure |
you recommended for the removal of the graft?

A Let me again refer to my op note.,
Yeah, we used the endoscopic fashion.

Q Endoscopic. Okay. During the
endoscopic procedure, is there some tugging that
happens on the vein in order to get it out of the
leg when you use the endoscopic procedure?

A Yes, sir.

Page 78

1 Inyour practice, if you to have leave for a minute

2 to use the restroom, or you have to take an

3 emergency phone call, do you always, every single

4 time, write in the operative note, I had to leave

5  the OR room for one minute? Do you always note

% that in your report? '

7 MR. ; : You're asking if he

8  knowsit?

9 A Tl tell you it's — the, the nurses S
10  in the room are -- and I have not looked at my 10
11 notes from that perspective, but if there's a 11
12 substitution, if there is a stop, the nurses in the 12
13  room will note that. 13
14 Q (MR.GASTON) So you're relying upon 14
15  the nurses to make that notation in the chart? 15
16 A To the best of my knowledge, they will 16
17  be the ones who wifl be making that note. 17
18 Q Do you ever dictate that in your 18
1%  operative reports? 19
20 A Ttis so rare, sir, that, you know, we 20
21 leave a procedure, like this one patient that [ 21

Page 79

1 -tell you about, when somebody was coding 1

2 downstairs. And that was not this case, because 1 2

3 know the other — I remember the other patient. 3

4 A —it's not an issue. . 4

5 Q Well - 5

6 A If this was happening even once a week, 6

7  then one would go there. But we just — these 7

8  patients are our responsibilities. We are -- and, 8

9 pelieve it or not, we take our responsibility very, 9
10  very seriously. And if somebody's chest is opened, | 10
11 you usually don't just walk out of the room. 11
12 Q Back to my original question, Was -- iz
13 do you, yourself, dictate that in your operative 13
14  note when you have to leave the operating room? 14
15 A The one time ¥ weat down for that 15
16  bieeding patient, yes. Not just — I also made a 16
17  note on that bleeding patient that this is wherel 17
18  am for this bleeding patient. 18
19 Q And-— 19
20 A So, yes, in that situation, a note was
21 1

Page 81

Q Do you believe that the vein that was
harvested from Miss 's leg suffered any
further injury, tearing, any adverse effect by '
using the endoscopic procedure to remove the vein? |

A No, sir. ::'

@ So when you had that vein -- when the,
when the surgical assistants removed the vein,
would it be fair to say that you visually inspected
it —

A Absolutely.

Q --and found it to be suitable for the

use?

A Again, I don't remember the specifics
of this case, but that's kind of what you ds. You
can use that vein, so you inspect i¢, you see which :
portions of this I can use, which portiens of it I
cannot use, and you make that call.

Q And if you had determined that portions
of‘the vein were not usable, you simply would hot
use that for your procedure, correct?

reo e e

A =~

A Fer that poriion.
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Page 82- : Fage 84 [:
1 Q For that portion. . 1 placed the pacing wires in the patient's chest?
2 A See, the vein is this long pA A There is no reason to write that, sir.
3 (Ihdicating), vou ineed two grafts. You say, from | 3 It's all my responsibility. And, see, whoever
4 here to here I can use it, here to here I can use 4 places a stiteh, it's the surgeon.
5 it; this part is not usable, I won't use it. 5. Q So, ultimately, your responsibility for
6 Q Okay. And after the vein was 6  thataction? )
7 harvested, you made your analysis as to which 7 A For everything that happens to this
8  portions of the vein would be suitable for the 8  patient. ‘
9  surgery, and then you prepare-, prepared to do the 9 Q And that's why you don't name in your
10  grafting procedure? 10 report whether you did do it, or whether someone
11 A Yes,sir. 11 else doesit?
12 Q Okay. Now, do you know whether ornot | 12 A See, it's — again, like I said, it's,
13 both Mr,* or, or I'm going to assume -- 13 it's like an — and 1, T love that word, orchestra,
1< A 1 is what we call him, so — 14  because it makes me feel good about what we do
15 Q TI'm sorry? 15  that, you know, it's, as you're closing the chest,
16 A , the other guy, Mr. 16  there's a routine we follow.
17  (phonetically) -- 17 And Mr. and T have worked
18 Q 7 18  together for a long period of time. H's - if
19 A Wejustcallhim ), 19  there's bleeding happening on this side, he can
20 Q 3. Okay. There two gentlemen? 20 see, see better, he looks at that bleeding; I can
21 A Yes. ' 21  see the bleeding better. If he said, hey, this
Page 83 Page 85
1 Q Do.you know if both of them continued 1 is—do we need to put a stitch here, Dr.
2 toassist you with the cardiac bypass procedure, or | 2 ? Okay, let's put a stitch here. Ifthe |
3 wasitsimply Mr. ! 3 aorta bleeds here, you know, one person puts the
1 A Mr. s the senior person. So, 4 finger on it, the other person stitches it.
5 typically, Mr. 'is there for the whole case, | 5 But is it his responsibility because he
6 and: comes in whenever we need him. 6  put the stitch in the aorta? No. It's my .
7 Q Okay. Now, I'm going to jump to the 7 responsibility, and I'm there making that decision |
8  end of the procedure. 8  whether we going to do it or not. So that's why ]
g A Sare. _ 9  it's kind of immaterial -- and, please, I'm not
10 Q I believe the last thing that's done 10 being disrespectful —
11  before the chest is closed is the placement of the 11 Q Mm.
12 pacing wires? 12 A — as to who put that stitch. It was
13 A Yes. 13 done under my responsibility, under my direct
14 Q Okay. Do you know, from reading your 14 supervision.
15 operative note in this case, who placed the pacing : 15 Q But in this case, did you ask Mr.
16 wires in Miss’ s chest? 16  if he remembered where -- whether -- l
17 A No,sir, I do-not know from reading the | 17 A No, sir, I have not. ;
18  op notes. It's -- 18 Q Again, and heie's, here's -
19 Q Isthere a reason why, in your 19 A Se, so I apologize.
20 practice, you don't write in the operative note 20 Q --for interrupting -
z21 1 ical assisiani aciuail 1 A 1apotegize.

T S e R T
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Page 86

MR. . . Can1 help you to get
where you need to go -- [ think you need to go?

MR. GASTON: Right.
. MR. ; If you ask him whether
he determined where the pacing wires were placed
before the chest was closed, then you're going to
get to where you need to go.

As to who placed it, the decision was
when it was placed, he was satisfied with the
placement.

MR. GASTON: I'm going to get — |

WoWw 1y e W

e
= oo

Page 88 {:
A Yeah, :
MR. -- get to the question
about that, Ask the -- answer the question.
A But k-
MR. . Listen, listen. Answer
the question.
A Okay. With , the only thing

mentioned was, everything was done as always. This|
is the only statement that was exch:ingcd. :
Q (MR. GASTON) And did you have a

conversation with

W -y ol W N

e T e
Ao ol kN e o

12 will -- that's like my third question down the 12 A Not,mot. . Itwas—see,. s
13 read. ) 13  the junior guy, soit's —-with  , again, the
14 - MR.. . Sure. 14 only statement made was — :
15 “THE WITNESS: 1,1 apologize. Didn't 15 MR. He hasn't asked you
16 . meanto -- 16  that vet. Wait for the question.
17 Q (MR. GASTON) It's, it's okay. Ijust 17 A No,T,T'm sorry.
18  want to know if you spoke to Mr. anytime 18 MR.. Answer the questions.
1%  after Miss 7 3 death and talked about who 19 A L1 did not have a conversation with
20 placed the pacing wire. 20
21 A No, sir. 21 . MR. There you go.
Page 87 Page 89

Q Did he call up and talk to you about
this case after Miss 's death?
7 A You know, patient's demise is always --
it's, it's a, it's a big deal, okay? And » Mr.

, you know, we were a part of the team, and we
were all pretty shaken by that, okay? And these
kind of things happen. Once in a lifetime is, is a
little too much, okay?

The only words that everybody -- again,
see, as a leader of the team, when something bad
happens te a good team, it's my responsibility to
tell them, guys, we going to be fine. And we're
ot even thinking of a lawsuit; we're thinking of
something much more serious here, our patient. And;
what —not -- 1, the only thing
he said is, -

MR.. : So he's not asking
about -
A No, he - . . .
MR. -- he's asking about

He's going fo vou --

w w ~Jd ;o W=

e N RS S
(€1 FUR R

Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. Okay. So the only
regarding Miss

conversation you had with Mr.
leath was you said everything was
done?
"' A That, that's what I remember.
MR. . : Wait for the question.
Q (MR. GASTON}) It's okay. Everything
was done as usual?
A That's all, what I remember.
Q Okay. And you never went back to try
to remember, or recall, or figured out who actually
placed the pacing wires in Miss chest?
A No,sir.
Q And there be no way for you to do that

now?

A No,sir.

Q Well, let's get back to the bypass
itself.

A Sure.

Q Now, we're at the point of the

procedure whe

Miss s the operating
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Page 90 Page 92 |:
1 room. The vein has been harvested. You take a 1 (Pause.)
2 lookat the vein. You figure out what portions are 2 Q (MR. ) Now, this is a little
3 good for the operation. QOkay. Can you tell me 3 crude, but I'm just trying to understand how these
4 which is the first graft that you performed on Miss 4 grafls go on the heart when you get done with your
5 2 5  operation. So I'm going to try to stick it on
6 A Let me refer back to my op note. The 6  right there. Now, do you say it was --
7 first graft was anastomosis between the vein graft| 7 A Yeah.
8  and the obtuse marginal two. 8 Q And, actually, you grafied two of the
9 (Q Okay. Obtuse marginal two, I have no 9  arteries with the one vein; would that be true?
10  idea what that is -- o 10 A Yes.
11 A Sure. . 11 Q Okay. So this one goes across here.
12 Q --s0 if you could help me out on the 12 Does it also lay on this one here?
13 heart? ; 13 A Yes,
14 A Se if that's a vein graft going to this 14 Q Okay. That's good. And we have the --
15 side of the heart; and that would be going —so |15  now, does this go into the top up here?
16  this is an obtnse marginal one; this would be 16 A Yeah.
17  obtuse marginal two, to this artery. ' 17 Q All right. See if we can put that on
18 Q Okay. Now -- and that means that one 18  asbest as we can. Hmm. How's that look?
19  part of the vein would have to be attached - 19 A Good.
20 A To-— 20 - Q Okay. Allright. So that's the, so
21 Q -~ where your ﬁngeriis.' And where 21 thatis the, the first graft that you did. ‘
, Page 91 . Page 93|
1 would the end of that vein be attached to? 1 Now, in our illustration, we have this
2 A Se, before T go there, it also went to 2 blue thi_ng that we'll call the vein.
3 obtuse marginal one, so — o 3 A Yes.
4 Q I got, I got something that might help 4 Q [It's sticking a little bit up, apart
5  us. Hold on one second. 5  from the heart. -
6 (Pause.} 6 A Yes.
7 Q (MR. GASTON) Doctor, I know we're not | 7 Q In the actual operation, do you try to
8  inthe operating room — ' 8  take out as much slack as you can to have it lay as
9 A Oh. 9  close to the heart as you can?
10 QQ -- and this is simply for illustration 10 A You know, it's the — the adage is
11 purposes only. And if you want to tell me wherel | 11 that, a thousand long grafis before a short
12  can cut the end of that tube off. 12 graft -
13 A Se this is how this would go, 13 Q Okay.
14 typicaily. 14 A —okay? Soyou dea't want to give too
i5 Q Okay. And where would the end of 15  much, but you don't want it, want it io be too
16  that-- 16  tight either. So you just leave it with some
17 A Onto the aorta here. 17  Iaxity here so that if the heartis to expand, you
18 Q Right up there? - 18  kmow, the beart goes into some post operative heart |
19 A Yes, 19  failure, the Heart gets bigger, you sieed to have i
20 Q Okay. IfIcan just take that back 20  thatextra freedom so that the graft doesn't get I
21 from you real quick. 21 too short i
24 {Pages S0 to 23)
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Page 94 Page 96|
1 Q Okay. Now, do you know how much, in 1 (Q Sure. There, right there? ;
2 the terms of centimeters, or quarter of an inch, or 2 A --the space for both.
3 halfan inch of 1axity, you want to leave in the 3 Q Mm-hmm.
4 graft in order to account for the beating of the 4 (Pause.)
5  heart? 5 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. Now, does this
6 A It's not just the beating. It's also 6  graft come around the front of the heart, or do you
7 the, the heart getting bigger or smaller, okay? 7 try to wrap it around the back of the heart?
8  Especially what you're worried about is some kind | 6 A Most of the times, invariably all of
9 of post-operative failure where the heart is now 9  the times, we do make it go in front of the beart.
10 bigger than what you saw at the time. 10 Q In front of the heart. And do you
11 If the pulmonary artery pressures go up 11  think that this is what you did in Miss
12 post-operatively, this artery, which is this much, 12 case? .
13 - becomes much bigger. And if your graft is already 13 A To the, to the best of my knowledge,
14 tight, then when this gets bigger, it's going to 14 yes. :
15  get even tighter and occlude it. 15 Q Okay. Now, was there one other
16 ) Isthere any way fo give a definitive 16  graft-—-
17  answer as to, to how much léeway you leave in that? (17 A Yes,sir.
18 A Ydonot. It's based on — you see, 18 Q --that you made? Now, I understand
19  there's a certain expérience. 15  that you used an artery --
20 Q  Okay. So that's your first grafi? 20 A Yes.
21 A Yes. 21 Q -- coming off ofthe top of the heart
_Page 95 _ Page 97|
1 Q Okay. And, actuatly, you accomplished 1 that actually goes to the lungs, or mammary glands?
2 two grafting procedures with that one vein grafi, 2 A Goes to the chest. i
3 right? - 3 Q The chest?
4 A Yes, sir. 4 A Yes.
5 Q Okay. And whatis the: - we'll go now 5. Q And do you simply excise that artery
6  to the third, if you will, the third grafting ' 6  off of the chest, and bring it down, and attach i
7 procedure. Where would that be done? 7 . to the heart?
8 A The third is an end-to-side anastomosis 8 A Yes, sir.
9  between the vein graft segment and the PDB. 9 Q Okay. And let's sec if we can figure
10 Q What is PDB? 10  out where that is. So if's not using the veins
11 A PDB is the artery in the back of the 11 from herleg --
12  heart. It's the — right here (Indicating). 12 A Yes.
13 MR.. : Careful, you're going | 13 Q --it's actually using the artery
14  ioknock that over. h 14 that's already in existence and coming off of Miss 3
15 Q (MR. GASTON) Underncath? 15 heart, so let's see if we can do that, |-
16 A Yeah. 16 (Pause.) '
17 Q And where would the graft end? 17 MR. GASTON: That about right?
18 A Yes. 18 MR.. : Yeah, I gotit.
19 Q Stuck tha* 19 MR. GASTON: Okay. Weil, just -- aii
/ A right. Thank you.
8 Q (MR. uASTON) Nuw althaugh itsa
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Page 98 Page 100 [
1 crude diagram, do you think that is a, a fair 1 schematic illustration.
2 depiction of what Miss heart and 2 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay.
3 grafts looked like at the conclusion of the bypass 3 A Absolutely not an illustration of how
4 surgery? ' 4  lax--
5 A Yes, sir, 5 Q Mm.
6 MR. . : Well-- 6 A -- you keep a graft. It's a decision
7 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. 7 that is made there based on the issues at hand.
8 A That's not - ‘ 8 Q Okay. And from -- and in this case,
9 MR.. : Doyou, doyoumeanto ; 9  if's really impossible for you to describe for us
10  represent to the jury that that's how far off the 10 on illestration how much laxity was in the grafts;
11 heart they were, or that was the amount of graft 11 would that be a fair statement?
12 actually used, or are you just trying to show the 12 A Yes, sir.
13 end point to endrpoint? 13 Q Allright. So, we have the locations
14 MR. GASTON: Well, I'm asking the 14  ofthe graft in the'right place on the heart, but
15  Doctor if that is 2 fair depiction of the locations 15  the laxity just can't be accounted for; is that
16  of the graft, where they were on the heart, and 1le  fair?
17  approximately how much, if yoﬁ will, laxity, or -- 17 A That's fair. That's, that's kind of
18 MR.. : See, thal's what he's 18  the direction that the grafts usunally travel in.
19  trying to -- 19  Let's just -
20 . MR. GASTON: Yeah. Yeah, if you can - 20 Q Okay.
21 MR. : -~ to address. 121 A - keep it at that.
Page 9% Page 101}
1 Q (MR. GASTON) - if you can. 1 Q Now, the pacing wires, have we 4
2 - MR So youmay nothave-- i 2 accounted fof all the grafting in this procedure?
3 A So- ” 3 A Yes,sir. 7
4 MR. -- understood what 4 Q Okay. Docter, I asked you to bring
5  he was asking. " 5 similar pacing wires with you that were used in
6 A —the laxity part is very difficult to € Miss operation and -- but I don't
7 assess. 7 believe you've had -- provided those; is that
8 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. 8  correct?
g A Tt just depends, how big was the right 9 A Yes,sir.
10  ventricle at that time, how big -- now, if; in a 10 Q Do you know, from your own experience
11  schematic sense, you say that this is how these 11 from doing these operations, the approximate type |
12 grafts look, that's how they look. 12 of pacing wire that would have been used for Miss
13 Q Okay. i3 operation?
14 A But— 14 A We've used two or three different types |
15 Q If we were going to do, if we were 15  at the hospital, so I, I know what kind of pacing 35
16  going to do a medical illustration, then that would 16 wires --
17 be apreity fair representation of what Miss 17 Q Okay.
ig i heart's, and the focations of the 18 A —we used.
19 grafis, iook like, so -~ ‘13 Q) I'mn geing to show -- I'm going to pull
20 MR. . : So— 20 this out of Exhibit No. 11 — and they're sharp,
21 A This wouid be, this would be a 21 and - but 1 think vou've probably handled these
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Page 102 Page 104 |
1  before - and ask if vou can identify what's in 1 suture at the end? :
2 -that packet? 2 A Yes, sir.
3 A Yes. This is one kind of pacing wire 3 @ Tt would just have --
4 thatis used. : 4 A That's right.
5 Q Okay. Do you know - 5 Q - the, the wires?
6 A Thave —sorry. 6 A Yeah.
7 Q Go ahead, Doctor. 7 Q So Ijust pulled the suture off of the
8 A No. You first. 8  end of this one. Now, I'm going to ask you if
9 Q Do you know whether or not, in this 9 that, if that's a reasonable replica of the pacing
10 case, this is a kind of pacing wire that was used 16 wire? ' _
11 for Mrs. ? 11 A Itis a reasonable representation of
12 “A Ido not kirow that, sir. 12  what we use.
13 Q And what is the difference between this 13 Q Okay. Now, what I want you to do --
14  kind and another kind of pacing wire that you 14  oh, I'm sorry -- you have no recoflection of where
15  usually use? , 15  the pacing wires are placed in Miss
16 A You know, the other pacing wires we've 116 heart;' would that be fair?
17  used, they do not have a needle af the end of it. 17 A That would be fair.
18  And the, the wire is kind of more squiggly, so that { 18 Q Aliright. Is there any way that we
19 it makes more contact with the, with the muscle. |19  can provide any testimony to the jury, or we can
20  Okay. Sothose. - 120 reasonably recreate where the pacing wire was
21 But, in essence, this is where it is, 21 placed in her heart in this case?
page 103 Page 105 f
1 There's a metaliic part to it, and then there is 2 1 A Absclutely. ‘
2 part that is covered. 2 Q Okay.
3 Q Okay. Now, in the pacing wires - 3 A It's -- the commenest area where we put
4 again, we don't know whether or not you installed 4 the pacing wires is around here (Indicating).
5  the pacing wires in the heart, or were - whether 5 Q That's d piece of tape, Doctor.
€ M - installed the pacing wires; would that be 6 A Okay. So there's two wires that go
7 correct? 7 7 here (Indicating) and here (Indicating).
B8 A They were installed under my direct 8 (@ I'll hand you a second pacing wire,
9 supervision, sir. & Doctor.
10 Q But we doit know whether you or he did 10 " (Pause.}
i1 i? 11 Q (MR. GASTON) If you could tum the
12 A Wedonot. 12 heart just a little bit this way. Okay. Anddo
13 Q Okay. Now, in the pacing wires, are 13 you put any other pacing wires on the left side of
14  the ones that you use -- do they sometimes have the |14  the heart?
15  suture at the end so that you, 50 that you could 15 A Yes, sir. We put ventricular wires,
16 put the suture through the heart muscle, itself, io 16  also. :
17  secure it to the heart, or do you use a different 17 Q Okay. If you could turn the heart |
18  type? 18  around and just indicate where -- T don't have
19 A We use a different fype. Usually, we 19  three and four - two more pacing wires, but where
20  gse a different type. 20 on the other side of the heart would they go?
21 & Okay. So that type would not have ihe 21 A The veriricuiar wires wouid go bere and
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Page 106 Page 108
1  here {Indicating). 1 A Above or below the heart. "They go out
2 Q Okay. Sothey would go below the two 2 of the chest cavity. That's where the heart is, at
3 wvein grafts on that side of the heart? - 3 thelevel of the heart, and then they come out at
4 ) A Yeah. Or they can go into fhe right .4 an angle so that they are in the — they come out
5  atrium. See, it's, again, whatever -- we have 5 below the diaphragm, if that's what you're asking. |
&  space, good muscle available — there's a lot of 6  So they go -- on the inside, they're above the
7  fat on this heart — so if there is muscle 7 diaphragm; on the ouiside, they are usually above
8  available here, we go here; if there's easy muscle | 8 or below the diaphragm.
9  access in the back, we go in the back. 9 Q ButI'm going to assume that you put h
10. Q Okay. Do you know in this case where 10 these two pace — or either you or Mr. put
11  the ventricle pacing wires were placed? 11  these two pacing wires on the right side of the
12 A Ido not. 12  heart. Would they go down first and come out,
13 Q But, usually, it's, it's on the left 13 would they go straight across and come out; how
14  sideof the heart - 14 would they normally come out of the heart? .
15 A 1t's on the right side of the heart. 15 MR. . © Why, why don't we, why :
16 Q I'm sorry. 16  don't we do it this way because, obviously, he's
17 A It's on the — usually, it's on the 17  not operating with the patient standing up. Why
18  right side of the heart, and one inferiorly, or one | 18  don't you put the heart down on the table as if the
12 right, one lefe. It's whatever -- we can find good | 19 patient's on the table, and then show the ladies
20  muscle, that's where we put it. 20  and gentlemen of the jury the angle that the wires
21 Q Do you always put four pacing wires — 21  leave the heart and come out of the body, and then
Page 107 Page 109 ]
1 A No, sir. 1  we can be on the same plane.
2 Q --T'm sorry -- on the heart? 2 Q (MR. GASTON) You can do that --
3 A’ No. o 3 A Thank you..
4 Q Okay. Can you refer to your operative 4 Q --if you want just turn it over.
5  mnote, and can you tell me how many pacing wires 5 A OkKkay. So this is how we go. These —
6  were, were placed in Miss heart? 6  I'm standing on- this side of the table. This is
7 A 1do not know based on the note how .7 where the skin and the subcutaneous — thisis |
8  many pacing wires are placed. - 8  wliere the coverings are, and we go here, and we
9 @ And are the pacing wires -- if you 9  take them out going this way (Indicating). We
10 could turn the heart just a little bit around. So 10  just - and then tie them off here. And that's -
11 the pacing wires on this side of the heart should 11 Q Okay. So, it's -- and if you could
12 go, would it be fair to say, in a downward 12 justpull these a little bit snugger so we can --
13 direction towards the abdomen? 13 sothis — is that — yeah, and just -
14 A Somewhere they -- 14 A Yes. '
15 MR. You mean, as they come 15 Q Yeah. And, now, when you placed the
16  outofthe chesi? 16  pacing wires in the place where you want them --
17 A Yeah. They go from here — this is 17 A Yes.
18  where the abdonien is — they go in this direction |18 @ --before the closure, is that the
19 out of the chest wall. 19 ap}nroximat’e -
20 20 A That's a reasonable representation.

{ --is that the reasonable
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Page 110 Page 112
1  representation? 1 dogmatic about it, but if I was to logically think :
2 A Yes. _ 2 it through, what are the usual events that happened
3 Q Soyou don't want to have a whole lot 3 after a surgery like this that could have lead to
4 of wires back in here, or looped up anywhere over = 4 that--
5 here in the heart, do you? 5 Q Well, I'm talking about, in this case,
[ A No. ' &  do vou have an opinion within a reasonable degree
7 Q Okay. 7 of-
& A You, you don't want that — 8 MR. . You interrupted him --
9 Q Okay. ] MR. GASTON: Sorry.
10 A =~ yet. You do want -- so now when the | 10 MR. 2 - but you;can ask
i1  patient is going to breathe, or the patient is on 11  another question. But let him finish answering it.
12 the ventilator, you don't want these wires. See, |12 Hyoudon'tlike the answer, ask another question.
13 these are put in place with very fine, sitk suture. 113 MR. GASTON: T'll strike that question.
14  If this wire doesn't have some laxity in it, this 14 MR. iz Ne, no, no, you can't
15  will dislodge — | 15 do that.
16 Q Understand. 16 MR. GASTON: Well --
17 A — 50 — but with the breathing, with 17 MR. : No. You asked your
18  the respiration, with the movements of the 18  question. He's not process of answering. You
19  diaphragm, so there is laxity in the pacing wires, | 19  cannot interrupt him, and stop him, 'cause you
20  also. ' 20  don'tlike it. So, finish answering the question,
21 Q But you wouldn't need four, or {ive, or 21  and then we can go on tf) the next question.
Page 111 Page 113}
1 six inches of extra wire inside the heart for that, 1 A Okay. Now, these are just theories
2 would you? ’ 2 thatT can present, what conld have happened in
3 A Not six inches, no. 3 this particular ¢ase to bring the two structures in
4 Q Okay. All right. Thank you, Doctor. 4 close opposition. One of the commonest things that
5 Now, it's my understanding, from 5. happen -- not commonest -- it happens in every
6  reading Answers to Interrogatories, that it's your 6  patient - is there is still collection of some
7 contention in this case that either the grafts 7  amount of blood. Not a tamponade, but some amount
8  moved after the operation, or the pacing wires 8  of blood in the cavity around the heart. - -
9 moved after the operation, or a combination of both 9 Now, it is conceivable that this
10  moverents that resulted in the laceration of Miss 10 collection happened in a direction that brought the
11 graft; is that accurate? 11 two structures together. Also, as blood goes
12 A They're positioned relative to one 12 throngh fibrinous changes that can further bring
13 anether, moved after the cperation that lead to the | 13 these two structures together, that can conceivably
14 laceration — 14 come in gpposition. ,
15 Q Okay. 15 QI understood the first part. Say the
i6 A - that brought ihem in close 16  second part agam for me. You said fibrmous
17  opposition, which lead to the laceration. 17  changes.
18 Q DButyou're — would it be fair to say 18 MR. : Fibrinous,
19 that you're unable to give an expianafion as to how 19 fi-br-i-n-o-u-s.
20  that occurred over that five-day period? 20 Q (MR. GASTON) Explain to-me what that
Z1 A Yon know, it's very difiicoii o be 21 is, please. i
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Page 114 Page 116 |

1 A See, whenever there is blood and — in 1  which would then grad -- which could have been a

2 acavity, it starts to clot then. And as it starts 2 contributing factor to this. But the second does

3 to clot, there are also other structures around 3 not.happen without the first.

4 here, which is the heart, which is the chest wall, 4 Q The fibrinous changes, what is that; is

5  that start forming some strands which, ultimately, : 5  that scar tissue building up somewhere?

&  over a longer period of time lead to scar ' 3 A . It's very early stages of fibrin

7 formation. But here, the time is too short for 7  deposition. So, whenever we have a clot that forms

8  scar formation. Se it's just an early part of 8  in the body, it's -- then we get a seab, The scab '

9  those changes that would bring the two — that 9. is nothihg but fibrin deposition and some other
10 could have conceivably brought the two structures ; 10 bloed components. ‘

11  together. 11 Q Allright. 1 do not understand what
12 Q So your theory 1s — set aside the 12 youjust said, so let me try to break it down
13 first one — the second one is that, at some, some 13  again. And, again, I'm saying, I'm trying to pet
14 part of Miss i heart, the blood started 14  youto use language that's easy to understand. And
15  toclot inside the heart, inside? 15 I'mnot undérstanding this fibrinous changes. Is
16 A Nao,sir, No, no, no, no. ) 16 that bn the surface of the heart, itself?
17 Q You said started the clot, and then 17 A Outside of the heart, yes.
18  that results in changes. I'm trying to figure out, 18 Q Outside of the heart, on the surface of 7
19 in this case, what is your theory — 19 the heart? -
20 A Okay. ' 20 A In between the structure. In between
2% Q - about the blood clotting in the 21 the heart and chest cavity.

Page 115 Page 117

1 heart? 1 Q Okay. What is changing? What is

2 . A Isitokayifl — 2 changing about the structure of the heart that

3 Q Hang on a second. What is your theory 3 causes the vein graft?

-4 about the blood clotting in the heart that pushes 4 A See, that's a whole different -

5 the two things in together? : 5 Q And hang on a second. What, what is

6 A It's not in the heart, it's outside the 6  changing about the structure of the heart that's

7  heart. ) 7 causing the vein graft and the pacing wires to get

8 Q You mean just blood laying in the heart 8  intertwined or pushed together?

S cavity? 9 A That's, that's a very good question. |
10 A No, sir, net in the heart cavity, in 10  What else changes with the heart? Now, if allofa |
11  the chest cavity, so ountside the heart. 11  sudden — think of this — that this side of the -
12 Q@ Oh. Ithought that -- all right -- I 12 heart dilates, gets bigger.

13 thought that was the first explanation, that there 13 MR. . Here. The camera isn't |
14 was blood clotting in the chest cavity that pushed 14  seeing whai you did. Just slide it over. There 3
15  them together. You're saying this is something 15  vyougo.

16  different, your second explanation -- 16 A So —TI'm going to stand up again, if

17 A No,not— 17  you don't mind -- 56, now, what could bring these 1
i8 Q -- something different? 18  two things together? If this side of the heart
19 A —it's just a process of the same. So 1%  somehow gets bigger, which happens in heart

20  once you have blood in any cavity, thereisalso |20  failure — and this patient did have right heart

21 i

faiiure, and that's why, aiso, the, the moiiral
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Page 118 ‘ ' Page 120
1 valve issue is relevant — but if we have this side 1 more than the other is because the two did get -1 |
2 of the heart expanding, this will move this graft 2 ‘mean, I'd Jove to be able to say that they were — *
3 in a particular direction. 3 did not come together. The fact is that they came
4 If there is some kind of a space- 4 together. 'That's the only way the vein got
5  occupying lesion, okay, whether it's a clot, which 5  lacerated. .
% is the most conceivable here, that forms hereand | 6 So what happened in those five days
7 here, these two structures will be pushed and 7 that got these two structures together? So the
8  brought together. And these are just possibilitics &  probability, I would say, would be higher in this
9  that we are talking about. 9  case, that it really happened than did not happen. |
10 Q Well, let's go from the realm of 10 Q .And when did you reach the conclusicn
11  possibilities to probabilities. Is there any way 11 that you just told me?
12  that you can testify, within a reasonable degree of 12 A In my thinking, you know, when you go
13  medical probability, that that's what's happened in 13 through the five stages of -- you know, despair of
14  this case? 14 that, why did this patient die, you try to think
15 A Absolutely, sir. That's — now -- 15 what went wrong. And that's the only logical _
1¢ Q Absolutely yes? 16 explanation f could come up with. Now, it doesn't
17 A -- a probability is, a probability is 17  bring the patient back, unfortunately. :
18  an informed opinion, is an informed — you know, |18 @ Okay. When did you come up with that
19  unless, in a scientific experiment, you have clear 12  logical explanation'? '
20 " data, you havea Cat scan which shows that they're | 20 A In the period after the patient's, when
21 togethei'; and this clot, which you don't, you can 21 the graft lacerated, be -- I talked that througﬁ, ”
Page 119 Page 121 |
1 only rely on logic. The logic here is that these 1 why would this have happened.
2 twao things got together. The second parf of the 2 Q So, you were aware of this when Miss
3 logicis, when [ close the chest, they were not 3 passed away? '
4  together. How did the two of them get together? 4 A That was the number one logic in my »
5  There's got to be some force that pulled it this 5  mind as to why this would happen.
&  way, or some force that the heart expanded and 6 Q Okay. And did you explain that to the
7 brought it this way. And these things happen, 7 members of the family?
8  especially in this patient — patient did have 8 MR = Now, we're -- all he's
S  right heart failure, post-op - the patieat — ali 9  asking is, do you remember explaining that to the
10 patfents have blood. You — despite our chest 10 family?
11  tubes here, all patients collect blood. And this 11 THE WITNESS: I do not remember
12  patient, maybe it collected in an area that pushed | 12 explaining it in that detail to the members of the
13 the two together. 13 family. t
14 O Allright. That's what I want to go 14 Q¢ (MR.GASTCN)} Ifyou had and knew the )
15 to. Maybe it coliected in an arca that pushed the 15  reason that you believe she died, wouldn't that be
16  two together. Would you agree maybe it also did 16  something that you would normally expiain to the
17  not collect in an area that pushed the two 17 family members?
18  together? i8 A You know, it's — you always make 2 -
19 That's, that's a pessibility. '19  decision at that time when the family is grieving.
20 It's -- each are equally possible? 20 As to how much of a detail you wait to go into, or |
21 Bui ihe, the reason why one makes i I would the family want a5 to go into at that time, .
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Page 122 Page 124 f
1  there's really very few relationships that are more | 1 - had - ' lf
2 sacred than the relationship between a patient and ; 2 Q Mm. ' :'
3 doctor. There's not too many people you would let . 3 A — family members who are physicians,
4 your wife expose herself to, here, examine my wife.; 4 nurses, or anybody else who says, listen, Doc, I'm
5  Soit's an extremely emotional time for both, yes. 5  justnot -- T don't have an answer yet. Can you go
&  Of course, way more emotional for the patient, ¢ more into the details? I would absolutely do that
7 patient's family, than for the doctor, and you try 7 ' in that case. 7
8  to tell them what you feel at that time is 8 Q Inany chart or in any note in Miss
9 appropi'iate. ' 2 file, does it relate what you believe
10 Q Do you believe they were entitled to 10 had caused the grafi to be lacerated?
11 know the truth -- 11 A Tcannot recollect going through that.
12 A Oh, yeah. Sorry. 12 Q 1didn't see that in the chart, Doctor.
13 Q --they were entitled to know the truth 13  Isthat something you would normally place in your
14 of how Miss died? 14 -chart?
15 A They are absolutely entitled to know 15 A The logic — I would usually not feel
16  everything about it. ' 1le  the need to do that.
17 " Q But you made the decision not to 17 Q Why not?
18  explain the reason that you came up with as to why 18 A Because the graft is Incerated. The
19 she died at that time? 19  problem we are trying to fix now is, now do you fix l::.
20 A Ttold - . 120  the graft and take care of any sequela that are
21 MR. : Hold on. Now, waita {21  happening subsequent {o that.
Page 123 Page 125
1 second. That's an inappropriate question. If your - 1 Q Isn't why the graft became lacerated ‘
2 question is whether -- that you didn't explain to 2 the most important question and answer that neéds
3 them that she died of a lacerated vein graft — and 3 1o be in the patient's chart?
4 I don’'t think you mean to suggest in your question 4 A No. The most important thing is how do
5 that he didn't say that - you're asking whether 5 wyou fix that patient. The most important thing is
"6 all the details were given; am 1 correct? 6  how do we address that issue; did we do our best to
7 Q WhatI'm asicing is, in your mind, when 7 fixit. That, to me, is the most important issue. '
8  Miss died, you came up with a theory of 8 MR. GASTON: I think we need to take a
9 what caused the vein graft to be lacerated; is that 9  break.
10 true? 10 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Going off the record |
11 A Yes. 11  atthe time of 12:10.
12 Q When you spoke to the family after Miss 12 (At 12:10 p.m., the deposition was
13 died you choose -- you made a conscious | 13 recessed and resumed at 12:20 p.m.)
14  choice noito reveal that information to the 14 THE VIDEQGRAPHER: We are back on the
15  family; is that true? 15 video record. This is start of Disk No. 2. The
16 A Y do not remember the exact discussion 16  timeis 12:19.
17  Ihad with them. In most circumstances, what 1 17 Q (MR. GASTON) Doctor, do you know
18 would tell the patients' family is that the patient 18 2
1%  died because of this laceration. Usuzlly, I wonld 19 A Yes, sir.
20  not go into the details of how that that laceration | 20 Q And how do you know him?
21 A is a nurse praciitioner of {he
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Page 126 Page 128 |
1  hospital. 1 Q (MR.GASTON) Allright. Had youmade |
2 Q How long have you known | ? 2 adecision that Miss ! pacing wires were
3 A Tdon't know exactly how many years, 3 to be pulled earlier in the week, but then
4 butit's, it's a number of years. 4 posiponed the pulling of the wires until February
5 @ And I understand that Mr. is 5 6?
& the nurse that pulled the pacing wires from Miss 6 A Ido not remember any suck discussion.
7 chest; is that true? 7 Q And what is it about the 6th that you
8 A Nurse practitioner, yes, sir. 8  felf that that was the day the wires should be
9 Q Aﬁd was that done at, under -- at your 9  pulled? ‘
10 request? 10 A Again, I, I do not remember,
11 A Yes, sir. _ 11  specifically in her case, when we told him that, go
12 ¢ Okay. And how did you make that 12 ahead, pull the wires out. That's just the
13 request? 13 routine, \
14 A You know, we make rounds, and on those | 14 Again, what is specific about her case
15  rounds there, it's decided that, hey, this patient 15  is that she also had that mitral problem. And
16 s ready for discharge, you can pall the chest 16 paﬁeh'ts with those mitral issues, and some amount
17  tubes, you can pull the pay — pull the pacing 17  of right ventricular failure, we do want to keep
118  wires. Those instructions are given on rounds, 18 the pacing wires-in lbnger than a uswal routine ,
19 - Q Well, afe they given verbally; do you 19 CABBAGE where we say, okay, on the first, second
20  have to write a order verbally? 20  day, take the pacing wires‘out. ‘
21 "A They can give verbally. 21 Q Now, do you ever remove pacing wites
Page 127 page 129}
1 Q Verbally. And to whom do you give 11 foma patiént that you performed open heart bypass j
2 that, that instruction? ’ 2 surgery on? :
3 A To the nurse practitioners. 3 A Do Ipersonally ever remove them?
4 Q So whatever floor Miss was 4 Q Yes, Doctor.
5  on, whoever the nurse practitioner would have been | 5 A If T have to, yeah.
6  onthat floor, generally when the patient's getting 6" Q Okay. And would --
7 ready 1o be discharge, and you think it's 7 A If's, usually it's the team members who
8 éppropriate for the pacing wires to be pulled, you 8  doit. ButifI have to do it, it's — we do it.
9  inform that nurse practitioner -- 9 Q Well, okay. I'm trying to figure out
10 A Yes, sir. 10  in your practice, when do you make the decision
11 Q - that -~ to go ahead and pull the 11 that you have to pull the wires, and the, the
12 wires? ) 12 pulling of the wires isn't delegated to a mirse
13 Okay. Did you make a decision earlier 13 practitioner?
14  on in her admission to puil the wires on the 4th, 14 A Usaally, there would be one of two
15  butto delay it until the 6th? 15  reasens. One is the nurse practitioner's just not |
16 A You know, we — 16  mot available, busy with other patients, and we '
17 MR.. : Answer the question. {17  want to send the patient out, so we pull the wires,
18  Focus on his question, because otherwise we're 18  take -- fill the discharge summary in, send the -
19  going to get sidetracked. 19 patient home.
20 A Conid you repeat that question, please, 20 Q Okay.
21 ' 21 A The second reason would be the nidrse
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Page 130 Page 132 [

1 practiﬁoner would call and say, hey, listen, I'm 1 A 1didn't get the first part of the 4
2 having some problems with this wire, then they ask § 2 question, how do we account for that.
3 you to come and help out. ) 3 Q Right.
4 Q Okay. Are you aware of the traﬁrﬁhg 4 A Well, what do you mean by that?
5  that Mr. received in the pulling of pacing 5 Q Tt means, do you take that into
&  wires? 6  consideration during the treatment of the patient?
7 A 1am personally not aware of that, sir, 7 Are some patients more susceptible to this blood
8  but I will say he's been doing this for a long 8  clotting than others? How do you make the l
9  period of time, and I'm personally not aware of %  determination that this patient may be at higher

10 any-— 10  risk for developing a blood clot that could cause a

11 Q Mm-hmm. 11  laceration of a heart graft --

12 ‘A -- particular training nurse 12 A Sorry.

13 practitioners receive, 13 Q -- and death; how do, how do you do

14 Q " So you don't know who might have 14  that and - when you evaluate a patient after

15  trained him, or what training he received? ' 15 . performing the surgery?

16 A T am personally not aware of that. 16 A So after every surgery, we leave drains

17 Q Okay. Has he pulled pacing wires for 17  in the pericardial cavity so that any significant

18- your patients before? 18 amount of blood is drained out. How we determine

19 A Yes,sir. 19 - whether somebody will form a smaller collection

20 Q Is there ever, ever come atime when he 20 which could potentially move grafts around, that

21 decided to call for your assistance or help when 21  pretty much happens in every patient. I mean, we

Page 131 Page 133 |

1  the pacing wires were pulled? 1  can't prevent a little amount of bleed, which is
2 A Yes, sir, o 2 just partand parcel of the procedure.
3 Q Okay. Did there ever come a time in 3 Q So the smaller collection of clots I
4 your practice that a patient, such as Miss 4 happens in all patients? l
5 vho underwent bypass surgery, hadhad | 5 A Every patient has blood around the
&  one of her grafis lacerated by the pulling of the & - heart after the procedure.
7  pacing wire? 7 Q Okay. Well, how do you prevent against
8 A No, sir. 8 that blood clot from causing this type of 2 [
9 Q This is the first time it's ever 9 devastating injury?

10 happened? : 10 A The only way we prevent that, and the

il A Yes,sir. 11  only thing we do is leave drains in the chest so

12 Q I would venture to say it's not 12 that the drains evacuate the blood.

13 something that you anticipated happening? 13 Q And where is the source of the bleeding

14 A l\‘Io, sir. 14  coming fioin that causes the clots in the patient's

15 Q Now, how do you account or take into i5  heart?

16  consideration the fact that a patient can develop a 16 A The, the bleeding comes from,

17  blood clot that inoves the pacing wires into contact | 17 essentially, all around. We've cut a lot of

18  with the vein grafts that could cause a laceration 18  tissues as we go in, so now there's, there's two

1%  resulting in the patients death; how do you, as a 19 things here. One is massive bleeding, which would

20  surgeon and a doctor, account for that, and what 20 ‘cause a condition called tamponade, and one is

21 io you take t vent that from hay ing?

Tusi pozing, which is causes coliection of smail
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amount of bloods — blood here, thére.

Now, massive bleeding is afl taken care
of. If that was to happen, first of all, we, when
we close the chest, we make sure that all major
bleeding sites are controlled. If that blood is to
collect in the cavity, that would evacuate out of
the chest tubes, and that's hew we prevent that.

The small amount of oozing, that is an
inherent part of — whenever we cut any part of the
body, that's going to happen.

The goal, goal is how we prevent it
from becoming in any way it -- an, an,
particularly, element on the pump mechanism, and
that's why the drains are there.

Q" And, in this case, was there any
indication that Miss | was bleeding inside
the chest cavity before the pacing wires were
pulled?
A See, L 1,1 do want to, again, darify

that we talking about two different kinds of
bleeding. One is bleeding encugh to cause cardiac
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patient does not have any amount of bleeding that
would cause a tamponade, ) ' '

‘Was there any indication that the
patient had small amount of blood clot around the
heart? It's -- every patient has small amount of
blood clot around the heart.

So there was — there's not a thing
that we look for. There is no indic-, no .
indication that this patient did net have blood k
around the heart. It, it's just an essential part .:
of the procedure that there is blood around the
heart. '

Q So, if T understand this correct, every

patient will have a small amount of bleeding around
the heart following the heart bypass surgery?
A Yes, sir.

- Q And the small amount of bleeding in
every patient can result in the grafts being moved
10 get in contact with the patient wires to cause
the laceration and, unfortunately, ultimate death
of a patient?

w o~y o W N
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tamponade. The — what I am propesing is that this
bleod was not enough to cause tamponade, but just
enough to change the direction of the grafts, or
push the graft in one direction or the other.
The bleeding that happens in a big way

nsually happens if one of the grafis is leaking, or
if the aorta where we sew the graft in, that there
is blood leaking from there, or the chest wall can
bleed. So there's two different kinds of, or two
different quantities of blood that we're talking
about here.

Q My question was, in this case, was
there any indication that there was bleeding inside
of Miss chest cavity before the pacing
wires were pulled. And it's -- a bleeding that
we're talking about is the one that you suggest
caused the clot that forced the grafts to move.

A Okay. Again, there was no indication
in this patient that we had any massive bleeding,
and that is what we studied. We -- the patient had

posioperaiive echoes done, which siowed ihai the
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A I, potentially, if it is in,
unfortunately, the wrong place, it could.

Q Is there any quantity of blood clotting
around the heart that you believe is required in
order to move a vein graft into contact with the

pacing wire?
A Twould not know that number, sir,
Q And what, if any, amount of blood
heart after

clotting was found in Miss . .
the pacing wires were pulled?
A I'm sorry. Say that again.
MR. . You mean at the time of
the second procedure? : l
MR. GASTON: Right.
Q (MR. GASTON) How did you determine or
conchude that there was clofting in Miss
chest cavity that pushed the pacing
wiré into conttact with.the graft?
A Becaise that is an essential part of :
what happens in every patient. Not, not the second ||

part, but that the two graftings come together, but

T R R
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Page 138 Page 140
1  there is blood and blood clotting going on in the 1 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. One more
2 chest cavity of pretty much every patient. 2 time, please.
3 Q- Where in your operative note does i 3 MR. That's okay. You're
4 indicate blood clotting in the chest cavity at the 4 just--the two of you are on slightly different
5 site of the vein grafts laceration? 5  wavelengths. I'm trying to get you together.
6 MR. . : Excuse me. The note of | & MR. GASTON: TI'll ask it again.
7 the 1st? _ ' 7 MR. ; : Okay.
8 MR. GASTON: The 6th. 8 Q (MR. GASTON) What is the quantity of
S A 1, T'm sorry I'm not able to convey 3 the bleod clotting that you found in Miss I
10 this properly. 10 1 chest cavity when you wert in to try
11 MR.. : No, ng, no. YouTe 11  to repair the lacerated vein graft?
12 doing fine. I mean, I want -- - 12 A When we went in fo repair the lacerated
13 Q (MR. GASTON) Let me ask the question. 13 vein graft, there was a lot of fresh bleeding in
14 MR.. Yeah. 1 want, I 14 there. '
15 want - we're going to have a time-out here for a 15 - MR, : There we go.
16  second. You're answering what you want to answer, |16 Q) (MR. GASTON) Okay. But that doesn't
17  not what he's asking. And, so, I'm going to ask 17  answer my question. . N
18  youto -- and, and I understand you're irying to 18 MR. . Well, that's probably
15  articulate it, but that doesn't mean that's what he 19  ‘cause you're answering —
20  wants fo hear. He just wants to hear an answer {o 20 Q¢ (MR. GASTON) My, my -- :
21 his specific question. Ifit requires an ' 21 MR. : - the question'snot |
' Page 139 Page 141F
1  explanation, we can explain it to the jury at the 1 answerable, because -- ‘
2 time of trial. 2 Q (MR. GASTON} My, my question —
3 Right now, I just want you to try and 3 MR.. -- because what you
4 focus on what he's asking, and answer his question; 4 found - ’ ‘
"5 okay? 5 Q (MR. GASTON) Wait a second. You're -
6 A Could you please ask the question one &  and it alt goes back to your theory, that there was
7  more time? ) 7 clotting inside the chest cavity that pushed the
8 Q (MR. GASTON) I'l ask it a different 8  vein graft into contact with the pacing wires; do I l
9  way. Maybe it would be easier for you to 9  have that correct?
1C  understand. 10 A There's two elements of that. There's
11 What quantity of blood clotting did you 11  bleod inside the chest cavity. Some of that clots,
12 find and-measure in Miss chest cavity |12  which then pushes structures around. The second |-
13 when you tried to go in and repair the cut vein 13  component is the size of the heart, itself. The ‘:
14 graft? ' 14 size of the heart can increase or decrease,
15 A See, when we went in for the vein 15  especially the right heart in this patient, that |
16  graft— 16  cam change where the grafts lie. Se those are the
17 - MR.. : He's not.asking about {17  two hypotheses that T have.
18  that. He's asking you a quantive question. If you 18 Q Well, let's stick with the clotting one _
19 . can't apswer it, say [ can't answer it. I you 19 first, i
|20 can, try to help him and answer his questions. 20 |
. £t
21 |
-

What is the amount of the cloiting of

A Okay.
G
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Page 142 Page 144

1  the blood, what is the quantity of that clotting 1 A No.

2 that you found in heart at the closing of the site z Q And if you had seen blood clotting -

3 where the graft was lacerated -- 3 clotting of blood in the heart around the area of

4 A Well - 4 the graft when you went in to repair it, would not

5 Q - when you went in to repair the 5  youhave made a note of that in your operative

6 pgraft? 6  report?

7 A~ well, let mé use this. 7 A Again, sir, there's blood all around

8 MR.. i« No. Listen. No. Held : 8  when you go in. There's a big graft that's

S on. We're going to get this straight, and we're 5  lacerated. It, it — how wouldI —-I'm, 'm
10  going to, we're going to move on to the next topic. 10 sorry. I, I don't have am answer to that. You
11 He's asking you if you can say what the amount of 11 open the chest, there's blood all around.

12 clot was that moved the graft at a time when you're 12 Q Your, your defense is that there was

13  inthe heart after a - ‘ 13 clotting on -~ in the chest cavity that caused this

14 THE WITNESS: {,1-- 14  injury, correct?

15 MR -~ and a huge 15 A There was blood. My defense is that

16 laceration -- 16 there was blood at the chest cavity that could

17 THE WITNESS: 1- 17  change the spacial relationship between the graft |

18 MR. - and a huge blood 18 and the pacing wire, in addition to some structural

19  lossisoccurred. Can you answer that question? 19  size- related changes that would have happéned in

20 THE WITNESS: No. 20 the heart which also led to the two structures W

21 MR. Okay. There we go. 21 coming close together. . '
Page 143 Page 145 F

1 THE WITNESS: Because there's so much 1 Q How much blood in the chest cavity was

2 blood there — ) 2 there that caused the graft to come in contact with

3 MR.. Didn't ask you why, 3 this patient with the pacing wire?

4 just asked you if you could answer it -- 4 MR. 1. Is your answer any

5 THE WITNESS: No. 5 different than the I don't know you gave five

6 MR. : - for him. Let's try 6 minutes ago?

7 to keep this short and to point. T THE WITNESS: Iwould not know how much .

8 Q (MR.GASTON) Okay. What is the amount | 8  that part would be,

9 of blood clot that you believe is required - would 9 MR. . o Allright. -
10 be required in order to move that vein grait in 10 Q (MR.GASTON} Okay. And how much did ;
11  connection with the pacing‘wi]"e? 11 the heart increase in size that contributed to the
12 A F would be very hard to say, sir. 1 12 vein graft coming into contact with the pacing f;
13 already answered that question. 13 wire? E
14 Q You have no, no idea? 14 A The keari was an righi heavi failure
15 A Tt would be —it, it has to be 2 15  post-op. We had to ase fair amount of pressors on
16  reasomabie amounti of biood that's pushing things | 16  this patient. How much in centimeters or
17  around. .17  millimeters the heart would have dilated, ¥ would
18 Q What is a reasonable amount of blood; 18 netknow the answer of that, sir.

19  can you quantify that for me? 19 Q But the right heart failure didn't
20 A Ican't answer. 20 occur until after the vein graft was lacerated,
21 Q
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Page 146 Page 148 |
1 A No, sir. The patient had symptoms of 1 canincrease or decrease in size based on its
2 heért, heart failure even — and, see, it's - 2 status at a given time, and that is what — one of
3 - MR. No, just answer -- 3 the things that was happening. That Miss
4 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 4 » for a while, did require increased
5 MR. : == his question. 5  vasopressors as she was suffering from more
6 THE WITNESS: Yeah. 5 sympioms of heart failure.
7 MR.. I don't want you to 7 Q (MR.GASTON) Back to my original
8  start going into his own explanation. 8  question. What was the change in the size of the
9 THE WITNESS: Right. 9  heart that occurred from the time you finished the
10 MR.. He just asked ifyou | 10" bypass operation to the time the pacing wires were
11 had the right heart failure after the operation, 11 pulled?
12  before the laceration of the vein. 12 A I-
13 Q (MR. GASTON) Didn't Miss 13 MR. i. He's already answered
14  haveright, or heart failure following the severed | 14 - that, that he can't measure it in millimeters, or
15  vein grafi? 15  centimeters. _
16 A She did. 16 MR. GASTON: I, I didn't hear him say
17 Q Okay. Did she have any right heart 17 that.
18  failure that preceded the severing of the vein 18 MR. . Yes, he did.
19 - graft? : 19 A IT—it—
20 A She, she had heart failure before that 20 MR. . : Yeah.
21 also. ‘ 21 A Tt's hard for me for say that in any
) Page 147 Page 149
1 " @ "Quantify that for me. Tell me how — 1  quantifiable terms.
2 what type of heart failure did she have; what 2 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. And because it's
3 . caused it? 3 hard for you to quantify that, it's very difficult
4 A She had longstanding coronary artery 4 to, to then testify as to what effect that, in and
5 - disease, especially on the right side, which was a 5 ofitself, contributed to the laceration of the
&  hundred percent occluded. She also had mitral &  vein graft; would that be a fair statement?
7 valve regurgitation. Consequent to that, she did 7 A No. Because the, the heart dilates,
8  have elements of heart failure before the, the 8  and as the heart dilates — now, what you're asking
9" sentinel event here, and the sentinel event further | 9 me is, did it dilate one centimeter, did it dilate
10  accentuated her heart failure. 10  two centimeter? ¥ don't have the answer for that.
11 Q What was the change in her heart due to 11 Q But don't you account for that dilation
12  heart failure that occurred between the time you 12 . when you do the grafting?
13 finish the bypass surgery and the time the vein 13 A Absolutely. That's why you need
14  praft was lacerated? 14 the laxity.
15 A In - have to give a description 15 MR.. Relax. Relax, relax.
16  here. 16 Q (MR. GASTON) Se, if you accounted for
17 MR. : ¢ If vou think it's 17  that af the time --
18  absolutely ncces'saly, go ahead. 118 MR.. Hold on. Hold on.
19 A In patients who have a residua} miiral 19 Let's take a break for a second so you can finish
20 regurgitation, it takes them a few days te tofally ;20  up your deposition.
¥ THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Would you like fo go
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Page 150 Page 152 ¢
1 . off? 1 can.
2 - MR : That's fine. Go get 2 A So that says, global ejection fracture
3 some more water. 3 is-—-
4 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Are we going off? 4 MR.. : No, no, no.
5 MR. GASTON: Yes, we are. 5 THE WITNESS: Sorry. :
3 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Going off the record} 6 MR. < Letsgobackand |
7 at12:41. 7 listen to his question. He asked you for a very
8 (At 12:41 p.m., the deposition was 8  specific measurement. Answ"er his -
9  recessed and resumed at 12:42 p.m.) 9 MR. GASTON: Please don't interr- - 1
10 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Okay. Please wait ;10  would ask his counsel not —
11 for my announcement. Back on the video record 11 MR.. -- question.
12 record at 12:42, ' 12 MR. GASTON: -- to interrupt the
13 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. Docior, duringthe 113  witness when he's answering the question.
14  heart bypass surgery for Miss I believe 14 MR. I just wanted him to
15 one of the things you do is anticipate the increase 15  answer your question, so it - ask it again, and |
16  inthe size of the heart during the recovery 16  then you can answer ii.
17  process; is that fair? 17 Q (MR. GASTON) Do you remember the
18 A Yes, sir, 18 question, Doctot?
19 Q And when you anticipate for that, then 19 " MR. . Apparently, he --
20 youmake sure that the size of the grafts that you 20 A Yeah. Looking for the size and exact
21 use will be adequate in order o prevent them from 21 centimeter size of the right ventricle.
' Page 151 Page 153
1 being pushed around inside the chest cavity by the 1 Q (MR.GASTON) Yes, sir. &
2 increase in the size of the heart, to the best you 2 MR. Go ahead.
3 can? ' - 3 A 1do not have, at least in the quick
4 A Yes, sir. . 4  search that I'm doing, I do not see a size
5 -Q Okay. Now — so that was something 5  measurement of the right ventricle.
6  that was anticipated, would you agree, the increase 6 MR. . Okay.
7  inthe chahge and the size of the heart? 7 Q (MR. GASTON) All right. But you did
8 A That, it is anticipated. 8  review the echocardiogram?
S Q Okay. And can the increase of the size 9 A Doctor - well, one of the treating
10  ofthe heart be measured by radiological study? 10 colleagues reviewed at that time, the cardiologist
11 A At any given moment, it's - the right 11  reviewed the echocardiogram.
12  ventricular diameter can be measured. 12 Q Were you aware of the resufts of the
13. Q Was that measured at anytime from 13 echocardiogram during the time Miss was b
14  February 1st till February 6th? 14 a patient under your care?
15 A We did have an echo done. 15 A Yes, I was, sir. .
16 Q Do you know what the resuits were? 16 Q Okay. And would it be fair to say that P
17 A Tean read them to you. 17  you did not change your course of action or medical
18 MR. Hold on. 18  treatment based upon the echocardiogram?
19 (Pause.) 19 A Other than kaving to use more
20 Q (MR. GASTON) And let's concentrate 20  vasopressors, we did not de anything else.

{) Vasopressor, is that to increase blood
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Page 154 Page 156 |
1 pressure? 1 A Yeah. :
2 A Yes, sir. 2 Q - would that be fair statement?
3 Q Okay. Now, can you tell me what, what 3 A Yeah. Over my post-residency career,
4 device you use to secure the vein grafis to the 4  yeah. )
5 heart muscle, itself; was it a suture; wasita 5 Q How many years, how much years would
6 clip? _ &  thatbe?
7 A Sutures. 7 A Fourteen now, .
8 Q Suture. 8 Q Fourteen years. And, and was that some
9 A Youn mean to mzke that anastomosis? 9  other state, some other country, some other
10 Q Yes, sir. 10 facility; do you have any idea where those three or
11 A Suture. 11 four patients came from? '
12 . Q Okay. And are you aware of any of your 12 A In the region.
13 colleagues ever having what happened to Miss 13 Q In Maryland?
14 happen to any of their patients? 14 A Maryland, D.C.
15 A You mean any of my colleagues' 15 Q But you can't identify the patient or
16  patients? 16  the treating physician?
17 Q Yes, . 17 A No.
18 Al _ani aware of one case that happened. 18 Q Just something you heard of?
1% Q Yeah. And when was that; how long ago? 119 A Yes.
20 A That was almost 10 years ago. 20 Q Okay. All right. Your lawyer can help
21 Q Ten years ago? 21 us out with this answer --
Page 155 Page 157
1 A Yes. 1 A Thank you.
2 Q And did that patient suffer a vein 2 Q --but] have to, I have to ask you a
3 laceration when the paciﬂg wires were pulled? 3  question. Areyou contending that anv other person
4 A 1 had just heard of this patient, sir. 4 who was associated with Miss 's care did
5 I do not know ~ the patient had bled at the time 5  anything negligently that caused or contributed to
&  of — now, whether — where that bleeding came 6  her vein graft being lacerated and her ultimate
7 from, I have — I do not know. 7 death?
8 Q Okay. So, from your own personal 8 MR. No, we're not.
9  knowledge, you've never heard of another patient 9 A No, sir.
10  suffering the same fate that Miss 10 Q (MR. GASTON) Are you claiming that
11 suffered in this case? 11 Miss - did anvthing on her own accord that
12 A T have heard of patients, but I have 12 contributed to her vein graft being lacerated, and
13 pot directly tafked to the physicians who have gone | 13 hér death?
14  through this, other than this one doctor you've 14 * MR. 777 % There is not a ¢claim of -
15  mentioned. - 15 coﬁtributory negligence, but there will be
le Q Okay. How many times, other times have 16  presentation that she, obviounsly, had serious heart
17  youheard of it; can you give me an idea? 17  discase. .
18 A Probably about three, four times. 18 Q (MR. GASTON) Well, then, I need to ask
19 Q Three to four times -~ 19  the next question. If you carni draw the connection
20 A Yes. 20  between the heart discase and the lacerated graft,
is there any direct connection between those two

4G (Pages 154 to 1b07)
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Page 158

situations?

. MR. He's given you quite a
bit of testimony concerning how, because of her
underlying disease process. That includes her MR,
and that, indirectly, her MR and her right heart
disease could change the anatomic relationships.

Other than what you've heard —

MR. GASTON: Oh--

MR. ; - there is nothing
additional.

MR. GASTON: -- okay.

MR. : Does that help?

MR. GASTON: Yes, it does. Thank you.

Q (MR.GASTON) Can you tell me where on
this diagram, which heart graft was lacerated, and
the approximate location?

A Let me refer back to this one more
time.

MR. = 1 don't know that the
records were precise enough 1o say exactly where
the length of the -- the Jong length of the graft
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A Long laceration — -
MR. : Noton a graft. .

A — on a graft, no. Thankfully not.

Q (MR. GASTON) You can't, you can't tell
me whether it's a millimeter --

A No, it —

Q - or 50 millimeters? I'm just asking
for your best estimate. That's all I need, your
best estimate, Doctor, based upon your knowledge in
this case. |
A --Tthink half a centimeter would be ,
long for a laceration.

Q Axd do you know whete about on the '
graft the laceration occurred? ‘:'

A You know, I do not have a note here.

1i's — off of my memeory, I know it was not here.

Q On the top side of the heart?
A — on, on the visible side of the

graft. .
Q Now, one of your notes indicated that
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actually occurred.

MR. GASTON; Well, please, please let, '
Iet him answer instead of telling him it doesn't
say it.

A You know, what my note says here is
that there was a long Iaceration in the right
coronary artery graft caused, probably, by the
pacing wire.

Q (MR. GASTON) So, if you could point to
the members of the jury where the right coronary
artery graft was. i .

A This is, right here (Indicating).

3 Okay. Now, when you mean long, can you
give me an idea in, in centimeters, ot inches?

A Tdo not have it recorded here.

Q Okay. Normally when you use the word

long laceration?

A That's the first time I've had to use

long laceration on a graft, so --

Q You never used the word long before?

" .you believed the tip of the pacing wire is what
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caused the laceration. Can you explain why you
believe it was the tip of the pacing wire, and not
some other part of the pacing wire? And what does
the tip of the pacing wire -- ’

A Sure.

Q - look like?

A Canl take these off now?

Q Sure. Mm-hmm.

A See, by tip, ] mean the exposed part
the pacing wire. Usually, we don't leave this old

part, we leave a shorter segment of the exposed
part. ‘

Q Okay.

A Se that, obviously, this would not
Iacerate anything. It has to be the metal part —
Okay. So it's the wire, itself?

Fhe wire, itself.
And the tip -
The closed wire.

el o)
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Page 162 Page 164 [
1 the wire? 1 MR. That's going to be .
2 - A No. The tip, to me, means this is what 2 - asked of him by me. He doesn't have to recite the
3 the exposed part of the wire would be, the tip of 3 law and, so, 'l ask him to assume what the
4 thewire. So not, not the anatomical tip. Andthe | 4  standard is. ‘
5  ¢nd probably would have been a better word. 5 Q (MR.GASTON) Well, I want --I'm, I'm
6 Q Okay. Have you ever -- &  trying to figure out what's your knowledge of the
7 MR.. Talking about the 7 standard?
8  uninsulated portion? 8 MR. . If you --
3 THE WITNESS: That's right. 9 A Ido not know any definitions. I'm
10 Q (MR. GASTON) Have you ever wrote any | 10  sure there is a definition. I do not know the
11  articles, book chapters, texts that deal with the 11 definition of standard of care. :
12 pulling of the pacing wires? ' 12 Q (MR.GASTON) Okay. Would you believe
13 A No, sir. 13 that, as a surgeon, if you had an option of !
14 Q Do you find that any books, treatises, 14  performing the procedure in two ways, and one way
15  orarticles are authoritative on the placement of 15  would it -- need, and see, expose the patient to
16  pacing wires, or the pulling of pacihg wires? 16  injury and harm, and the other way would not.
17 ‘A Ihavenot looked at that, sir. 17  That, with all things being equal, the surgeon
18 Q And you're not, you're not claiming 18  would be required to choose the way that did not
19  that, what - _ 19 needto see -- expose the patient to injury?
20 MR. Well, I mean, ifhe's | 20 MR. | 1, because I disagree
21 not locked into it, how can he answer this 21 with that as anywhere even close to what the legal :
_ Page 163 ' Page 165
1 question? 1  standard is in Mar)}]and, Tl instract him not to
2 Q (MR. GASTON) Well, I mean, you, you're 2 answer.
3 not — what, what I — what I'm trying to figure 3 Q (MR. GASTON)} Doctor, do you agree
4 outisthis. You claimthat, if you go to 4 that, as a physician, you should not heedlessly
5  Sabiston's Textbook on Surgery, you'll find, in 5 expose a patient to harm or injury?
&  Chapter Six of, of - the, the method of how to put 6 MR. i Same instruction.
7  the wires in, or how to pull them. You, you would 7 MR. GASTON: You going to instruct him
8 ot be referring to any such treatises or 8  notto answer?
9  textbooks, would you? 9 “THE WITNESS: I'm sorry —
10 A No. 10 MR. That's correct. Yes.
11 MR. : Letme puttoyouthis |17 MR. GASTON: Okay. That --
12 way. If we are going to do that, we'll provide you 12 Q (MR. GASTON) And, Doctor, if you're
13 notice. 13 claiming that you followed the standard of care in
14 Q (MS. GASTON) Doctor, from your Answers : 14 this case, tell me, if you can, in your own words :
15 to Interrogatories, I understand that you reserved 15  why you believe you followed the standard of care? |
16  the right to give expert opinion on standard of 16 MR. If you give him the
17  care. The next questions I have to do with 17  Maryland Pattern Jury Instruction definition of
18  standard of care. 18  standard of care, then he can answer the question.
19 What is your understanding of the 19 MR. GASTON: I'm not going to give him
20  definition of the standard of medical care in the 20 any.
21 Maryland medicai community? 121 G (MR, GASTON) 1 just wani you 1o tell
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_ Page 166! ~ Page 168 |
1 'meinyour-- 1 Tl be happy to let him answer your questions.
z - MR. 1 Okay. 2 . Buf what is legally relevant in Maryland law along
3 -Q (MR. GASTON) -- own words -~ 3 those lines is very specific. So, as you phrased
4 MR. : If you're not going 4 your question, I'll instruct him not to answer.
5 to- ) 5 Q (MR. GASTON) Doctor, did you ever
6 Q (MR. GASTON) -- if you -- 6  inform Miss " that when the pacing wires
7 MR. ~ “": I'm sorry. 7 were pulled out of her chest, it was a possibility
8 A What's the definition? 8  or aprobability that her vein graft would be cut,
9 MR. T Wait, wait, wait a 9 and she could bleed o death, and die?
10  second. No, wait a second. 10 MR. You can answer.
11 MR. GASTON: All right. 11 A Linformed Miss © ~ C - o
12 MR. ".. .. So,youask your 12 MR. ’ * No, no. Now, come on.
13 question, I'll make my statemént, and then we'll 13 A — that there is — :
14  decide whether he's going to answer. And we're 14 MR. Listen, listen, listen.
15  talking over each other, and I apologize. 15  This one's real easy. Listen to his question. Did
is Q (MR.GASTON) Doctor, it's my 16  you inform her of the risk, that if you could
17  understanding in this case that, that you are 17 pull -- when you pulled the wire out, you could
18  contending that you filed the applicable standard 18  lacerate the vein and she could die; did you tell
19  of care for the treatment of Miss =~ ~ 18 19  herthat?
20  that true? 20 A No, sir, I did not.
21 MR. . *: You can answer that | 21 MR. - Okay.
Page 167 Page 169
1 if-- 1 Q (MR. GASTON) Is there a reason why you
2 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 2 didn't tell her that and explain that to hex?
3 MR. ™ --he giveslyou —-now | 3 A Becanse this lS asuch-a rare
4 hold on a second ~ if he gives you the definition 4 occurrence, that I do not feel it is ap-pl'(}pr'iate to
5 ofthe standard of care that's applicable under 5  name every possible complication that could happen |
6  Maryland law. If he doesn't want to do that, I'll 6  inany procedure. '
7 instruct you not to answer the question. 7 Q During the course of the bypass
8 A Ifl was - 8  surgery, did you administer potassium to Miss
9 MR. : Just - 5 ;
10 A - provided with the definition of the 10 A Potassium is part — yes, sir.
11  standard of care, I would be able to answer that ; 11 Q And is that reflected anywhere in the
12 question. 12 operative note?
13 Q (MR. GASTON) But, as we sit here 13 MR. : Do you want to Himit
14  today, in your own mind as a surgeon, you do not 14  himio the operative noie, of to -
15  have a working definition of the standard of care 15 A No. It's to be in the pump report.
16  that wouid be applicable to surgeons, such as 16 MR. : Right. \
17  yourself, for performing a open heart bypass 17 Q {MR.GASTON) Or you canshow meinthe |
18  procedure on a patient, such as Miss 18  record. I'm -- you know, it's fine. 3
19 MR, . : See, that'snot g 19 (Offrecord discussion.)
20 20 A So it's in the cardiopulmenary bypass
21 repori where we give cardiopiegia. This pattent
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Page 170 Page 172
1  received boeth antegrade and retrograde 1 A — you asked me who --
2 cardioplegia, yes, potassinm as part of, as part of 2 - Q (MR. GASTON) No,ldidn't. 1 was
3 the cardioplegia that is there, yes. 3 saying--
-4 Q Thank you, Doctor. Doctor, I've, I -~ 4 A — who was playing Superbowl, I
5  take, take a look at the one of the chest x-rays. 5  wounldn't even know.
6  And it's up here on my laptop. I'm going to point 6 MR. GASTON: No, jt's Superbowl
7 itover in your direction. There are two little 7 MR. . No, it's just, it's one
8  round, metal rings that are in the -- can you see 8  of those questions that just gets my blood pressure
9 those in the chest x-ray? %  Dboiling. -
10 A Yes, sir. 10 Q (MR. GASTON) --it--
11 Q Can you tell me what they are? 11 MR. That's ckay.
12 MR. . Can you just tell me 12 Q (MR. GASTON) -- it's, it's Superbowl
13  what the -- 13 Sunday, and you were not in the hospital. And1
14 MR GASTON: Sure. 14  want to know -- T understand you got a call; it's
15 MR. -- date of the chest 15  in the medical record that you were called
16 x-rayis? 16  regarding the situation with your patient -- can
17 MR. GASTON: It is February 4th, . ? 17 youtell me who called you, and what was said, and
i8 MR. - 7t Okay. 18 whatyou did?-
19 A These are the vein markers, sir. 19 A OKkay. To the best of my recollection,
20 Q (MR. GASTON) And what's a vein marker? | 20 the first call I got was from _ .who
21 A So it marks this end of the vein. So 21 tokl me what had happened. Dr. was by
Page 171 Page 173
1 whatever the vein is hooked onto the aorta, that's 1 the patient's bedside, and that's all — what I
2  where we put a veint marker. 2 needed to know, to get in the car and start
3 Q Okay. So this -- these two circles, 3 driving ' :
4 actually, on this heart model would be the area on 4 . Q Okay. When he said he told you what
5 the heart, itsclf, where the two veins were -- 5  had happened, what did he -- what's the best of
& A Yes. 6  your recollection did he tell you over the, over
7 Q -- attached to the aorta; would that be 7 the, the cell phoﬁe, or the telephone conversation?
8  correct? 8 A The — to the best of my recollection,
9 A Yes, sir. . 9  what he said was, he had pulled the pacing wires
10 Q Okay. Thank you. Now, Doctor, I 10 absclutely uneventfully, ang all of a sudden the
11 understand you weren't in the hospital on February 11  patient had bleeding coming out of the chest tubes, 'ji
12  6th. This was Superbowl Sunday. And you gota 12 chest tube sites. And Dr. is here; we
13 call from someone that something happened to your | 13 need you here right away.
14  patient. Can vou go through that conversation for 14 Q Okay.
15  me? ' _ 15 A And this is purely out of my
16 MR.. i -t Youre talking abouta |16  reecslection. !
17 call that -- 17 Q And]I believe we've been provided with
18 MR. GAS'TON: Well, be, he -- 18  your cell phone records, a Verizon bill from that
19 "MR.:. -- about 8:00 or 8:30 19  ddy thaf's a two-page aitachment. And Tl show
20  in the moming, not when the Superbowl was playing ; 20 you, it's from — attached to Exhibit No. 10, and
21 as you werg implying 121 it'stwo pages. And Il let you take a ook at
44 {(Pages 170 tc 173}
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Page 174 Page 176 |
1  both pages. And if you can tell me, from these 1 can anybody tell me which is the phene call from
2 bills, number one, is that the phone that you 2 Mr ., according to the records? it would
3 received the call from, and the approximate time? 3 saveusalotof -
4 If'stwo pages. Some's been redacted, so I want 4 MR. Can you get the, the
5 youto - 5  complete thing? T'Hl see what I can do.
6 MR. You hand me the letter | 6 MR. GASTON: -~ it save us a lot of
7  overthere on your left? Just that letier, yeah. 7 time.
8 Thankyou ' 8 THE WITNESS: Sure. :
9 A Yes, sir, this is my bill. 9 Q (MR. GASTON) It — do you know whether ’
10 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. Andwouldthatbe |10  that call was at 8:11, 8:372 ' I
11 the -- was that your cell phone or home phone? 11 A Twill have to look at that.
12 A Cell phone, sir. _ - 12 Q Youhave to look? Okay.
13 Q Okay. Can you tell me what time, 13 A Yes. _
14  according to those records, you received that call? 14 Q After yod got the phone call, what did -
15 MR. . - Wait a minute. You 15  youdo? :
16  asked him what time did he receive the call from 16 A Got in the car and started driving,
17 M ~ :on his cell? o 17 Q Okay. And how long did it take you to
18 Q (MR. GASTON) If that's depicted on 18  getto the hospital? ' :
12  your cell phone. : : 19 A Takes me about 30 minutes, 25 if I'm --
20 MR.. * That's a different 20 25to 30 minutes.
21 question. Go ahead. 21 Q And were you at your residence in
Page 175 page 177
1 A Now, on this, I do not have the numbers 1 when you received the call?
2 - that called, but there was a call at 9:18, and then | 2 A To the best of my memiory, yes.
3 acall at 9:30. That's the record I have in front 3 Q .Okay. And when you arrived at the
4 of me. 4 Thospital, did you go straight to Miss
5 Q To be fair with you, Doctor, there's a 5  room, or - i
6  page before that that has an earlier tire. It's 6 A No--
7 all the way at the bottom -- ) 7 Q -- did you go sfraight to the OR?
8 A Oh 8 A -- no, to the operating roomn:.
9 Q -~ where your finger is? ] Q@ Operating room. So, by the time you
10 A So8:11,8:37 - 10  amived at the hospital, she was already in the OR?
11 Q Okay. 11 A Inthe OR.
12 A — and 9:18, and 9:30. 1z (@ Did — and I know it must have been an
13 Q Okay. Do vou know which of those phone | 13 urgent situation for you. When you arrived at the
14 calls were from Mr. “? 14 OR, can you do the best to tell me where in the
15 A I would have to take a look at the full 15 procedure Dr. was when you got into the
16  records o say which was from whom. 16  OR?
17 Q Okay. Isthere, is there a reason why 17 A Oh, that's right here. The patient's
18  you redacted the mumbers that would have reflected | 18 chest was already opened by Dr. .and Dr.
19  incoming call on there? ) : 18 i on the floor. The patient was brought
20 MR.. _ [ did that. 20 down to the operating rocm, and initial surgery was

y. Can you tell e,

virtually conducted by Dr as Ewas

g

45 {1

Evans Reporting Service
800-256-8410



- a/nenntn

Page 178 . Page 180
1  getting to the hospital. 1 MR Spell that for me. '.
2 When I got in, the following findings 2 MR. GASTON:
3 were noted. There was a long laceration in the 3 MR. 7 - ‘s Okay.
4  right coronary artery caused, probably, by the 4 Q (MR.GASTON) They call him -- he says, |
5. pacing wire. The laceration was still bleeding, 5  I'm, he announces himself as, I'm Dr. and they |
&  and then I repaired if with 7 oprolene (sic). 6 callmeDr. s atthe hospital. Do, in your :
7 So he alr;aady had the chest open, and 7 travels, do you know who this gentleman might be? |
8  there was a laceration that was visible, and it 8 A There is no doctor -- what kind of v
9  still had not been repaired yet. So he wasata 9  doctor is he?
10  stage where he opened the chest. 10 Q It's the doctor that came out and spoke
1l Q Okay. And do you know how many sutures | 11 to my clients after your your op- -- after the
12 or the technigues you used to repair the 12 operations that you performed on Miss
13  laceration? ) 13 A Mm, I cannot place anybody --
14 . A Tdon't know how many sutures, but I 14 Q Can't recail?
15  used 7 oprolene, which is a fine suture to repair 15 A - bythename i, nnless it was the
16  that. . : 16 anesthesiolbgist. Now, I don't know what — her
17 Q Okay. And do you know how long it, 17  first name on that. :
18  this procedure took once you got to the OR? 18 Q Okay. Just doesn't ring a bell to you? l
19 A I would have to look at the exact 19 A Nobody would call himself Dr,
20  -amount of time, but — I, I would would have to 20 Q Okay.
21 look at this. ‘ 21 A The anesthesiologist would say, I'm Dr. '
) Page 17% Page 181
1 Q And, and during this procedure, were 1 with the Iast name.
2 you able to place Miss . back on the 2 Q And how do you know Dr. L
3 heart-lung machine while you were doing the repair? 3 A From—Dr.. .. - is one the other
4 A 1do not see a note to that, that I put 4 cardiac surgeons at the hospital.
5 _ her on the heart-lung machine. 5 Q Is he associated with your, your
3 Q Istherea reason why you didn't put &  professional group?
7 her on the heart-lung machine, or did not - 7 A’ No.
8 A Because the heart was already beating, 8 Q Okay. Wouldit--did Dr. ™~
9 and we just repaired it. 9 just happen to be on rounds?
10 Q The heart was already beating? 10 A Mm, yes.
11 A Yeah. 11 Q Iknow you're anticipating. Did he
12 Q Oh 112 justhappen to be on Tounds at the hospital at the
13 A So, on the floor, they got the heart 13 timeMr. " . pulled the pacing wires?
14 back, and we pui an intra-aortic balloon pusp, but; 14 A Ves.
15  we - there is no mentien of putting the patient 15 Q You didn't call or errange for anyone
16  back on bypass. 16  tobeat Miss bedside when the wires
17 Q Could there be any benefit to putting 17 were pulled?
18  the patient back on bypass at that time at all? 18 A No.
19 A No. 19 Q Okay. .
20 Q No. Is there a doctor by the name of 20 MR. GASTON: Do we have an answer to my |
at the hospital? My clients testified - 1 :
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Page 182
1 MR. : Let me talk to him, and | 1 Q Allright. Now, after that repair, did
2 maj/hc wedo. I-- 2 you come out to address the family?
3 MR. GASTON: Okay. 3 A Again, F do not remember in this _
4 MR. : -- I don't want to say 4  particular case, but I would always go address this
5  onthe record what my assumption is -- -5 with the family. ' "
6 MR. GASTON: All right. 2 Q Okay. And let me just -- I'll ask
7 MR.. - — but I think I can 7 another question. You don't remember the
8  answer your question. So if you give me a second. - 8  conversations you had with Miss family
9 MR. GASTON: Sure. 9 after you made the repair to Miss last |
1o MR. : Okay. Go offthe 10  radiograph; would that be 2 fair statement?
11 record. : 11 A That would be a fair statement, sir.
12 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Going off the video : 12 Q Have you had any other conversations
13 record at 1:13. 13 with anyone associated with this case - and
14 (At 1:13 p.m., the deposition was 14 actually, with Miss -- I'm sorry ~ with
15  recessed and resumed at £:15 pm.} 15  Miss , or any of Miss family
16 THE VIDEQGRAPHER: We're backonthe |16  after Febmuary 6th, 12
17  record at 1:15. 17 A So-
18 Q (MR. GASTON) Okay. Doctor, we've had | 18 MR. % After February 6.
1% achance to review the phone records that you 19 A After the patient's death?
20 . provided to us, and I think - can we agree that on 20 Q (MR. GASTON) Right.
21 February 16th at 9:18 in the morning is when you 21 A Twould have definitely had a
Page 183 ' Page 185
1 received a call from Mr. regarding Miss 1  conversation with the patient's family after the
‘2 _ _..___  5situation? 2 patient's death.
3 A Yes, sir. 3 Q Yeah. But, I mean, after that day at
4 Q Can we also agree that 9:30 a.m., you 4 the hospital, after February 6th -
5 then called the hospital for an update on her 5 A Oh, after that date.
6  sitnation? 6 Q -- after that day, and up "till today's
7 A On my way to the hospital, I called the ; 7  date.
8  hospital - called Mr. to get an update. | 8 A 1do not recollect that.
S Q) Thank you. I think we might have 9 Q Okay. Doctor, did you have a
10  touched on this briefly, but after you made the 10  conversation with the Medical Examiner's Office,
11 repair to Miss graft, I believe you 11 either one of their investigators or one of the
12 had to leave her chest opened — 12  doctors there, following Miss death?
13 A VYes. 13 A 1do not remember a conversation, if 1
14 Q -- and then she was taken into the 14 had omne.
15  Intensive Care or Cardiac Care Unif - 15 Q And no autopsy was performed on Miss
16 A Yes. ' 16 , correct?
17 Q --is that true? 17 A I need to check that fact. I'm sorry.
18 A (Witness nodding affirmatively.) 18  Ishould know that.
12 Q Yeah, I'know you're shaking your head. 19 ( That's okay. I - there wasn't one
20  It's gotfo be ayes. 20 noted, and I wasn't aware of one, and I jﬁst want
1 21

to know. Sometimes the hospitals will de se
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' Page 186/} Page 188 |-
1 autopsy that the family's not aware of, but - 1 MR. « For a patient who's had
2 MR. __. I'mnot aware of one. z2 a-- :
3 MR. GASTON: Okay. Allright 3 MR. GASTON: A patient with her, with,
4 Q (MR. GASTON) Did you ever make any 4  with her condition.
5  other notes or memorandums on your own regarding = 5 MR.. ; Okay.
6 the situation, other than what's not contained in 6 A  She would be back to a life where she
7 the medical records, and before the lawsuit when 7 would still be on the Methotrexate, which she had
8  instituted in this case? 8  for her other associated pathologies. She would
9 A Not that I would recall, sir. 9 still have her mitral disease to deal with. Wounld
10 Q Have you ever taught an intern, a~ 10 she have lived through this? Yes.
11  younger doctor, or a nurse the proper procedure to 11 Q (MR. GASTON) Allright. And, and had
12 pull a pacing wire out of the patient's chest? 12 she survived, and you'd expected it would be a
13 A Not since my residency, sir. 13 relatively, quote, normal, active life, that she
14 Q Okay. And that would be 14 years ago? 14 would be able to live following this operation?
15 A Yes. 15 A With the caveat of her other pulmonary
16 Q Okay. 16  abilities still being there. ‘
17 A Formal teaching, that's - no. 17 Q Iunderstand. That's all the questions
18 Q Your formal teaching -- 18  TIhave. Thank you.
19 A Yeah. 19 A Thank you, sir.
20 Q - not, not you teaching somebody else. 20 MR. 7 . We'll read.
21 MR. .- AHiS question is, did 21 THE VIDECGRAPHER: Concludes the
- Page 187 ' Page 188
1  youever teach anybody since you finished your 1  deposition. Going off the record at 1:21.
2 training. ' 2 (At 1:21 p.m., the deposition was
3 A No. 3 concluded.)
4 Q (MR. GASTON) If the operation -- I'm o4
5  sormry -- did Miss . present with normal 5
6  human, human anatomy? ' 6
7 A She presented with normal anatomy 7
8  associated with the pathology that she had. 8
9 (3 Easier put, you found the organs where 9
10 you expected to find them in her body? 10
11 A Yes. 11
12 Q Okay. AndifMiss . had 12
13 sorvived her operation, would you anticipate that 13
14  she would be abie to retumn fo a normal, active 14
15 life? 15
16 MR.. _.. T Waitasecond. And 16
17  this question's relevant to' what? 17
18 ¢ (MR. GASTON) Well, I just want to know |18 :
19  if she had lived, if she survived the operation, 19 f
20 did you expect her, and hope for and expertherto |20
21 return to apormal, active iife? Z1
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